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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLHEE

2014 2013
—EF-nmF —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
FET T &
Revenue WS 21,415,651 20,680,750 +3.6%
Gross profit EF 2,486,422 2,891,935 -14.0%
Profit for the year attributable to ~ RA®#E A AJES
owners of the Company REEEF 1,118,369 1,619,990 -31.0%
EBITDA EITE R E RS 2,492,346 2,813,164 -11.4%
EPS (HK cents) SRIREF (B
— Basic and diluted — BEARNEE 38.41 57.43 -33.1%
DPS (HK cents) R B (B
— Interim — R Hj 10 7 +42.9%
— Final — RHA 5 12 -58.3%
— Full Year — 54 15 19 21.1%

The final dividend of 5 HK cents per share (2013: final dividend of EEDEHRERIBBFERBIN( T —=F:
12 HK cents) has been proposed by the directors and is subject to ~ ARHIRE B 1278 1l) - e 7B JE R 58 72 FE T A% RIB F
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general K& E#b& -

meeting.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MIGIHER

Basic earnings per share, dividends per share and dividend payout ratio
BREAZF - BRRERKS L=

HK cents
i [ EPSEMREF  — Dividend payout ratio JE & b 5
60 | [l DPSEBMEE 4% oL 50%
44%
L 40% 39% 39% o
%0 20 7% . | a0%
o | 8% % "sga1 | 35%
30%
30 | %890 27.08 25,67 25%
20.91 19.0 20%
20 11.82 13.76 150 | 15%
87 87 100 10.00 ’ 1145 100 10%
10 4.7 4.9 5.0 5.5
5%
0 0%
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2018 2014
* The calculation of basic earnings per share and dividends per share for the year from 2005 to 2010 have been adjusted for the bonus
issued and the share subdivision that have been approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 19 January
2011.
* —EENFR _E-FF 7 BRALXEFIREIRIREAEEHRERZE——F— AT NABITZREFFIXE FHEZ EEITARR
BR1D HFAEH 752 o

Analysis of EBITDA, gross, operating and net profit margins (%)
HENBERBHAFER  ERER - KEBRELURATED (%)

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Net profit margin attributable

Gross profit margin to the owners of the Company

N AR A EATIE
_ Operating profit margin EBITDA margin
Lving | BEITE R SHAIF =
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR

Jd

Turnover by geographical segments

RWED BB D 2 EXE
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Turnover by operating segments

BEES BB 2EXT

139 Electronic consumer
products (Note 2)

ETHBES (W)

87%
LCD products (Note 1)
RERBEEURSREM (1)

129 Electronic consumer
products (Note 2)

ETHEBES (W)

88%
LCD products (Note 1)
RERBEEURSREM (1)

manufacture and distribution of LCD products and touch panel products

manufacture and distribution of electronic consumer products such as CCM,

personal health care products and electrical devices

Note 1: LCD products —

M1 RERBERSRER — HEROHRERBTIRERMBERESD
Note 2: Electronic consumer products —

M5E2 s BFEBE®D —
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THE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERHES

Truly International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) continued its
growth in revenue from approximately HK$20.7 billion in 2013 to
HK$21.4 billion in 2014 by around 3.6%, but the double digit
growth in revenue target in 2014 had not been achieved and profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company had significantly
decreased by around 31.0% from approximately HK$1,620 million
in 2013 to approximately HK$1,118 million in 2014.

Besides, the Group's gross profit margin and net profit margin
attributable to owners of the Company in 2014 have been dropped
from 14.0% in 2013 to 11.6% in 2014 and 7.8% in 201310 5.2% in
2014 respectively. The above results were mainly attributed by the
decrease in average selling price of one of our key products, total
laminated touch module, during the year. The major reasons for the
decrease in average selling price of total laminated touch module
were keen competition and an increased proportion of mid- and
low-end smartphones applied total laminated touch module during
the year.

The management believes that smartphone market growth would
be continuing in 2015 owing to the gradual mature of mobile 4G
network in China, it would benefit to our Group’s revenue growth
in smartphone related products such as LCD display module, touch
panel, touch module and compact camera module. However, the
management has been encountering the difficulties to improve/
maintain the profit margins of the Group since 2014 owing to keen
competition and key products’ price decrease pressure.

The management team would try their best to solve this difficult
task through optimizing production process, production automation,
more different strategic co-operations with the Group’s major
customers and suppliers and enhancing the non-smartphone
businesses development such as automotive, industrial products.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the Directors,
the management team and all employees and workers for their
sustained diligence and dedication to the Group which contributed
to the continuing improvement of the Group's businesses. On
behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express our
heartfelt thanks to our business partners, bankers and stakeholders
for their continuing support to the Group.

Lam Wai Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015

EAEBERAR(ARAF MRS HELE
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EHFIME - —=ZF416.20EB T B L
31.0% =T —NFLH11.18EE T -

AN - RZE—PF - REBMEMNERARF
HEANEBEGRNEZDRHH_-_Z—=F114.0% &
78% THEZZT—UFM11.6% &52% Ll
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

Business Review and Award

Revenue for the year recorded a new high in amount by a slight
growth of approximately 3.6% amounting to HK$21.4 billion (2013:
HK$20.7 billion), which was mainly due to continuing popularity of
smartphone in the world.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$1,118 million which was approximately 31.0%
less than last corresponding year in 2013 (approximately HK$1,620
million). Basic earnings per share decreased to 38.41 HK cents
from 57.43 HK cents for corresponding period of the previous year.
The 2014 total interim dividends of 10 HK cents per ordinary share
were paid and payable during the year 2014 (2013: 7 HK cents per
ordinary share). In view of this, the Board of Directors has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of 5 HK cents per
ordinary share, representing a payout ratio of 39.1%.

The gross profit margin for the year decreased to around 11.6%
(2013: 14.0%) and net profit margin for the year attributable to
owners of the Company decreased to approximately 5.2% (2013:
7.8%). As stated in the Chairman Statement, decrease in net profit
attributable to owners of the Company in 2014 were mainly
attributed by the decrease in average selling price of the Group's
key product, touch module by total lamination, during the year. The
main reasons for decreasing in average selling price of touch
module by total lamination were because of keen competition and
an increased proportion of mid- and low-end smartphones applied
total laminated touch module during the year.

The Group's LCD business including touch panel products and
automotive display business was about 86.6% of the Group's
revenue for the year 2014. Other businesses of the Group including
the sales of compact camera module and printed circuit board
accounted were approximately 13.4% of the Group’s revenue in
year 2014. LCD business would continue to be the core business
of the Group in next few years.

In order to satisfy continuously the new products specification
requirements from the customers and improve the manufacturing
processes, the Group continues to put resources in the Group's
research and development, the Group spent around HK$803 million
and HK$782 million in 2014 and 2013 respectively. During year
2014, the Group has continued to register many patents related to
manufacturing processes of Compact Camera Module, LCD
Products and Touch Panel Products in China. Besides, the Group
was obtained a few Best Partner Awards from business partners in
2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THE BT S

Segment Information DEER

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company, [MAZAAFEEE (AFELEREE)REUSE
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of &R EFTFHRIAMBEEREP N TREERE®R
resource allocation and assessment of performance focuses onthe HIEE - DA E VIRBITHE Y - Bt -
sales of different types of products. Inter-segment sales are ZARNEFEEFD AWMELEDE - BEERLLE
charged at prevailing market rates. Thus the Group is currently REERNMEFHEER SZESENERDN
organised into two operating segments which are sales of LCD [ :

products and electronic consumer products. The information for

each operating segment is as follows:

LCD products — manufacture and distribution of LCD Rl necEm — HEMDHERRERER
products and touch panel products RELMEERESR
Electronic consumer —  manufacture and distribution of BEFHEBER — HERHEETFHEE
products electronic consumer products such aa (151 40 fk 7Y 45 R
as CCM, personal health care H-BEAARBRERK
products and electrical devices BFHE)
Segment revenues and results PEWNEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by  AREFIRLE R RESIEE| DR R EEST
operating and reportable segments: N
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE—_E—NMFE+_A=+—HIFFZE
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Segment
meE ETHE total  Eliminations Consolidated
BREER Em PEERE By =E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THT TET THET
REVENUE Wi
External sales ] 18,539,879 2,875,772 21,415,651 - 21,415,651
Inter-segment sales DEREE - 397,586 397,586 (397,586) -
18,539,879 3,273,358 21,813,237 (397,586) 21,415,651
RESULT £
Segment result GECES 1,689,436 97,051 1,786,487 (14,588) 1,771,899
Finance costs BRER (93,890)
Unallocated expenses AR (56,008)
Profit before tax Tl 1,622,001

—EEFR o ERERERAT > 09



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

For the year ended 31 December 2013 e —E—=F+_A=+—HIFFZ
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Segment
B emEE ETHE total  Eliminations  Consolidated
BASREM Em NEEE i gA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET FET TET TET
REVENUE [
External sales I 18,135,615 2,545,135 20,680,750 - 20,680,750
Inter-segment sales NEEHEE - 391,345 391,345 (391,345) -
18,135,615 2,936,480 21,072,095 (391,345) 20,680,750
RESULT £ |
Segment result ECES 1,985,130 248,212 2,233,342 (8,558) 2,224,784
Finance costs WsER (78,974)
Unallocated expenses AOEHZ (31,096)
Profit before tax B AT Al 2,114,714

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment HEEFMIERD AP RITHEIEK AN - EEH
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’ % $T44¢MTAA L EBEEFEELMKEH
salaries, loss on fair value changes of derivative financial @& SEFABIEGEH © kAR TEREREER
instruments and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the  EUAS A E R K ERINETE 57E -

chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

10 > Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFRE S

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about (i) the Group's
revenue from external customers by location of customers and (ii)
the Group's non-current assets by location of assets.

HEER
TR () AEEIZEFEER S ENINEE
PR (i) A EBEREEMELE S ENIERD
BEMNER -

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

SHEREF W FREBERE
2014 2013 31.12.2014 31.12.2013
—E-MEF —E—=F
—EF-nmF —F—=% t=A=+—-H TZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FERT FHT
PRC Fh 16,401,624 14,531,466 7,702,113 5,848,361
South Korea [ 2,720,132 4,060,878 - -
Hong Kong BB 535,245 475,738 100,712 34,250
Japan H 526,291 423,454 - -
Europe BOM 470,154 516,067 - -
Others Hib 762,205 673,147 - -
21,415,651 20,680,750 7,802,825 5,882,611
Outlook A=
As stated in the Chairman Statement, the management expects AN EF RS SFTi - ER BB E 4G AL B
that our group’s revenue could still be benefited from continuing # ' RZZE— R F - BEEEARNEEKRZEDH

growth of smart phone market in 2015 owing to the gradual mature
of mobile 4G network in China, but the management is still
encountering the difficulties to improve/maintain the profit margins
of the Group.

The management team would solve this difficult task through
optimizing production process, production automation, more
different strategic co-operations with the Group’s major customers
and suppliers and enhancing the non-smartphone businesses
development such as products applied in automotive, industrial
products.

Proposed Spin-off Update and Expenses

The management would like to update the Shareholders that the
Proposed Spin-off is still under progress since the announcements
of the Company dated 8 April 2013, 15 October 2013, 15 July 2014
and 1 December 2014 related to the Proposed Spin-off were made.
Truly Opto-Electronics Limited is still seeking an alternative way of
listing in the PRC.

FEARETRTBOEALE  FERENA
TR/ A BRI E B -

EEEENEEBELEERY  BEEE -
HAEEFERF MEEEETE S TR
SE - WHNRIEE e FHEB TR (WAERRE
me TEERSE) MR EMEE -

EERoRERRMEX
EEEZIMBREREER  BXARFRRERZD
FmiEAHAEA-—T—=FNANR - ZT—=
F+A+RHRHE ZE—NWFLA+HRHEE =T
—ME+=—F—BZR%%  BHEHFRNE#ET
B ERXRERMDERQBDDES KEMAER
FE R e

—MEFR o FRERERAT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

During the year, the Group has incurred around HK$5,691,000
(2013: HK$5,658,000) of professional expenses and around
HK$13,996,000 (2013: HK$24,583,000) of tax for assets transfer
between the Group and Truly Opto-Electronics Limited for the
progress of the Proposed Spin-off respectively, which were
charged to the profit for the year.

Further announcements will be made by the Company as and
when appropriate in compliance with the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Results
Results for the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's audited
consolidated revenue amounted to HK$21.4 billion (2013: HK$20.7
billion), representing an increase of 3.6% as compared to that of
last year.

The Group's gross profit margin and net profit margin attributable
to the owners of the Company decreased to 11.6% and 5.2% in
year 2014 from 14.0% and 7.8% in year 2013 respectively.

EBITDA and profit attributable to owners of the Company were
decreased to HK$2,492 million (2013: HK$2,813 million) by 11.4%
and HK$1,118 million (2013: HK$1,620 million) by 31.0%
respectively. Basic earnings per share was decreased to 38.41 HK
cents (2013: 57.43 HK cents) by 33.1%.

Income Tax Expenses

In May 2013, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in the
PRC has successfully entitled to enjoy the preferential treatment
on corporate tax by High Technology Enterprises for 3 years
commencing from 1 January 2012, the applicable corporate income
tax rate for this subsidiary reduced from original 25% to the
preferential tax rate of 15% since 2012. Therefore, around HK$68
million of overstated income tax expense for the year ended 31
December 2012 has been credited to the income tax expense in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2013
because such PRC subsidiary used 25% to accrue PRC corporate
income tax for the year ended 31 December 2012. For detail,
please refer to the Company’s announcement (Voluntary
Announcement — Confirmation of Preferential Treatment of Truly
Shanwei in Connection with Recognition as High Technology
Enterprises) on 30 May 2013. It was the major reason for the
increase in income tax expense for 2014 when compared to 2013.

12 > Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THE BT S

Investment, Assets and Liabilities

On 11 November 2014, Truly Semiconductors Ltd (“Truly
Semiconductors”), an indirectly wholly-owned PRC subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the Capital Increase Agreement with
Huizhou Investment Holdings Limited* (“Huizhou Investment”) (2
M TR E 12 I A R A A7) and Huizhou Zhongkai High-tech District
Investment and Development Company Limited* (“Huizhou
Zhongkai”) (BT le SR IEEREFREFEAF), being original
Parties to the Shareholders Agreement, to increase the registered
capital of the JV Company. Pursuant to the Capital Increase
Agreement, the Parties agreed to increase the registered capital of
the JV Company from RMB1,132 million to RMB2,000 million, with
each of Truly Semiconductors, Huizhou Zhongkai and Huizhou
Investment contributing additional RMB460 million, RMB183
million and RMB225 million by cash respectively. Upon such capital
increase, the JV Company will be held as to 53% by Truly
Semiconductors, 24.5% by Huizhou Zhongkai and 22.5% by
Huizhou Investment. For detail of this capital increase transaction,
please refer to the Company’s announcement (Discloseable
Transaction — Capital Increase Agreement) on 11 November 2014.
The new factory buildings construction of this associated company
of the Group is under progress and is expected to be completed by
the end of 2015.

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting
to approximately HK$1,696 million and furniture, fixtures and
equipment amounting to approximately HK$348 million for the
purpose of enhancing its manufacturing capacity and production
automation in the China factory campus.

Total assets were increased by approximately 15.1% to
approximately HK$18,732 million which comprised approximately
HK$10,786 million of current assets, approximately HK$6,781
million of property, plant and equipment and approximately
HK$1,165 million of other non-current assets. Total liabilities were
approximately HK$11,208 million, of which approximately
HK$10,291 million were current liabilities and approximately
HK$917 million were non-current liabilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the outstanding bank and other
borrowings, net of fixed deposit, cash and bank balances, were
approximately HK$1,774 million (2013: approximately HK$1,078
million). It was increased by approximately 65% when compared to
last year. These borrowing bear interest at prevailing market rate
and their maturity profiles are shown in the financial statements.
For non-current portion of these borrowings were matured within 5
years.
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R-ZT—NF+—A+—HB AREIzEEE2E
FREMKMBAREFEBERAR({EF4E8])
HEEMHIREERAR AR ([EMNEE ) REIMN
iemMEREREFRETAR ([EMNFIE])
(BPRE i RBEIH ) BT L E ek - bAIE
MEBRBZHEMER - RIFIEEHZE - FIHH
REBAERZEMEAMARE11.32@ L%
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The financial position of the Group is still healthy for future capital
expansion while maintaining a sufficiently high level of fixed
deposits, cash and bank balances (approximately HK$3,664 million
at 31 December 2014) together with adequate unutilized banking
facilities. The gearing ratio based on total interest bearing debts,
net of fixed deposits, cash and bank balances was approximately
25%, which has increased from 16% at 31 December 2013.

Capital expenditure commitment of around HK$341 million for the
year 2015 in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment
was contracted for but not provided, while the capital commitment
for the investment in an associated company was RMB460 million
(approximately HK$575 million) as at 31 December 2014. It is
expected that the capital commitment for the investment in an
associated company would be paid in the second quarter of year
2015.

General
The state of the Group's current order books is very strong.

Except for investments in subsidiaries, an associated company and
available for sale investments, neither the Group nor the Company
had held any other material investments during the year.

Additions to fixed assets mainly in furniture, fixture and equipment
and plant and machinery were approximately HK$2,196 million. As
at 31 December 2014, the Group had no pledge or mortgage on its
fixed assets.

More than 30,000 workers and staff are currently employed in our
Shan Wei factory in China and around 100 personnel in the Group’s
Hong Kong office. Total staff costs for the year were approximately
HK$2,029 million.

At the balance sheet date, a subsidiary of the Company is a
defendant in a legal action in ltaly involving the alleged defective
goods manufactured by the subsidiary according to its customers’
designs and specifications. The claim above against the subsidiary
is approximately Euro 7.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$68 million) in aggregate. The directors believe, based on legal
advice, that the case has legal and factual grounds to defend and
therefore it is not probable that losses (including claims for costs)
will be incurred. As a result, no provision has been made at the end
of the reporting period in this regard.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates will be considered to
hedge, if any.

14 > Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014

REB 7 B INABRE - UEAHRKRERE
RS HARBESERAZEHGER - RHe
ERTEF(R-_Z—NE+-_A=1+—HHA
36.64BET)  RARZWANERRITHEARE -
BARE G RIET B EFAE (MR EHFER
RERBITHER)TENERE2%  BZT—=F
+=ZA=+—HB2Z216% BATEM -

R-ZE—RF BEHILEBTZEART HE
ECREBEDE BELERE BEBECH
HEREE IR_E—NWF+=_A=+—8"
WER—HBERRICERNEKERARKEL60E
TL(#95.75 8B ) - HHRER —HBE A RZ
BARAEBR-_ZE—RAFFE_FH(F-

—REE
AEBRE 2 TERR IR -

BB AR KL —HEEARREARATHEER
BN AEBRARAARERFARFBERME
BEBRKE °

BlEBERNE CARM - KERRME - BFELs
BRE)VKNB2196EET - R-_E—HFE+_H
=+—B AREVEGHE T EED H R -

IREFAHBE30,0008 T AMEESFERAEB N
RERJIEZ TH > MMEKL100EE TSER
AEBEENER - AFEE THKALE20.29
BHETT -

REEH  ARR—HRBRARRERF—R
EARZNBARIRERF 2R RABRER
RIEE M2 ERFDPIERR T o Lt ¥ zM
BARZHERAE£4 /47,200,000 7T (FHERH
68,000,000/87T) - EHBIBEEE RMEE - Z&E
HEEEREEREETRE At KREHT
AAREELEBE(BEEARR) « St - RIS
ARG AR B VE B4 -

WAEXREBEAR - BIeERETE D -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THE BT S

Other Information

Dividends

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 5 HK
cents (2013: 12 HK cents) per share for the year ended 31
December 2014, based on ordinary shares in issue (number of
ordinary shares issued at 28 February 2015: 2,907,099,398), to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members on
28 May 2015 (Thursday). It is expected that the final dividend
payments will be made to shareholders on 5 June 2015, Friday,
subject to the Company’s shareholders’ approval at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

The interim dividends in aggregate of 10 HK cents per share (2013:
7 HK cents) were paid in 2014 and 2015 to shareholders on the
register of member of the Company at the close of business on 9
June 2014, 8 September 2014 and 3 December 2014, based on
2,914,753,398, 2,908,088,398 and 2,907,099,398 ordinary shares
in issue respectively.

The total dividend payout ratio for the year was about 39.1%.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2015
Annual General Meeting, the Register of Members will be closed
from Wednesday, 20 May 2015 to Thursday, 21 May 2015, both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares can be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfers accompanied by relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 19 May 2015.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed on Thursday,
28 May 2015, during which day no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at the above address for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27 May 2015.
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Customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 44% of the total sales of the Group
and purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 28% of the total purchases of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, our largest customer
accounted for approximately 16% of the total sales of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 11% of the total purchases of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2014, none of the directors, their associates, or
any shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital had any
beneficial interests in the Group's five largest customers and/or
five largest suppliers mentioned in the preceding paragraph.

Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out as follows:

Mr. Lam Wai Wah, aged 62, is the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. He is the founder of the Group and has
over 38 years of experience in the electronics industry. He is
primarily responsible for the formulation of the Group's overall
strategic planning and business development.

Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, aged 56, is an Executive Director of
the Company and the Chief Operating Officers of the Group. He is
responsible for the Group's operations in respect of internal
controls and risk management, investors’ relationship and external
affairs. He joined the Group in 1987.

Mr. Cheung Tat Sang, aged 59, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He is responsible for the sales of the Group’s LCD
products and other electronic components. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he had been the sales manager for a number of
electronics companies for over 10 years.

Mr. Li Jian Hua, aged 51, is an Executive Director of the Company
and the Managing Director of a PRC subsidiary of the Company,
Truly Opto-Electronics Limited. He is mainly responsible for the
factory production management of the Group. Mr. Li graduated
from the Jilin University of Technology and Engineering
Management in 1987 and joined the group in 1989. Prior to joining
the Group, he worked in a multinational motor car manufacturer in
Guangzhou City, the PRC for almost two years.
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Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, aged 57, is an independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Group's Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is a practising
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong, fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, member of
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and a council
member of the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants.
Mr. Chung has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management and has been the independent Non-executive
Director, management consultant and Company Secretary of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer, aged 56, is an independent Non-
executive Director and members of the Group’'s Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is the holder of a
Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Wisconsin,
Green Bay, U.S.A. Mr. Ip is a CERTIFIED FINANCIAL PLANNER®
CFP™ and a member of the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong
Kong. He is the Senior Financial Planning Consultant of a
professional insurance company in Hong Kong. Mr. Ip is also an
Accredited Mediator of the Hong Kong International Arbitration
Centre.

Mr. Heung Kai Sing, aged 66, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He has experience in textile industry.

Mr. Ma Wai Tong, aged 43, is the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary of the Group and the Company respectively.
Mr. Ma joined the Group in January 2011 and had 18 years of
auditing, accounting and financing experience including four years
with major international accounting firms and over ten years in
senior accounting positions in various industries. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ma
holds a Bachelor's degree in Accountancy and a Master’'s degree
of Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

By order of the Board
Lam Wai Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
liquid crystal display products including touch panel products and
electronic consumer products including compact camera module,
personal health care products and electrical devices.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 38.

Interim dividends in aggregate of 10 HK cents per share, amounting
to approximately HK$290,912,000, was paid and payable to the
shareholders during the year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of 5
HK cents per share based on the number of ordinary shares in
issue (number of ordinary share issued at 28 February 2015:
2,907,099,398) to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members on 28 May 2015, amounting to
approximately HK$145,355,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting
to HK$1,695,608,000 and furniture, fixtures and equipment
amounting to HK$348,072,000 for the purpose of expanding its
manufacturing capacity in Shan Wei City, Guangdong Province in
the People’s Republic of China.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements during the year in the issued share capital of

the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2014 were as follows:

%
ARz A DikEE

R-F-—EE+-A=+—A ARATHEF
R EIT

2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Share premium B =8 777,925 832,478
Special reserve BRI 17,410 17,410
Retained earnings IREBEF 36,086 38,763
831,421 888,651

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distributions or paying
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its
Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that
immediate following the distribution or paying dividend the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the net book values of the underlying assets of the
Company's subsidiaries acquired at the date on which the shares
of these companies were acquired by the Company, and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisitions.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Lam Wai Wah

Wong Pong Chun, James
Cheung Tat Sang

Li Jian Hua

Independent non-executive directors:
Chung Kam Kwong

Ip Cho Ting, Spencer

Heung Kai Sing

In accordance with Articles 100 and 120 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Lam Wai Wah, Cheung Tat Sang and Chung Kam
Kwong retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the above articles.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance
No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company

had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares

At 31 December 2014, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies,
were as follows:

Long positions
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company

EEZROREBERDERS

RZF-WF+-_A=1+—8 REARFTER
875 B 5R I 5 352 (R AT IR 17 2 B e i Frac ek -
SR LT RARAEFETERRHORESTRD
BREARANBEBRERSMBRARZER
EEREBBABRE ZARR RERBAE 2
BRI T

sy
(a) FAAREBRMEER2EBTZERR

Percentage of

Number of issued the issued share
ordinary shares capital of
Name of director Capacity held the Company
iz B 8T HERABZE BT
BEEHE 514 ZERHE BREBDL
%
Lam Wai Wah Beneficial owner 1,201,422,000 41.33%
MR EmEa A
Held by spouse (note 1) 74,844,000 2.57%
mECERFA (1)
1,276,266,000 43.90%
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 21,149,000 0.73%
|mHE BB A
Held by spouse (note 2) 1,650,000 0.06%
micEFE (FiF2)
22,799,000 0.78%
Cheung Tat Sang Beneficial owner 6,129,000 0.21%
SREAE EnHEBA
Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner 12,651,000 0.44%
TR BEmia A
Held by spouse (note 3) 22,500 0.00%
B @A (FE3)
12,673,500 0.44%
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7
(b) Registered capital of the associated corporation of (b) ZDTHEEEBZZEMER
the Company
Truly Opto-Electronics Limited (“Truly Shanwei”) (Note 4) BERAXERGERAR(EFLED (FHEEe)

Percentage of
paid up registered

Registered capital capital of Truly
Name of director Capacity contributed (RMB) Shanwei
RUFMER HEFLEZ#Z
EEnE g4 (AR®) ZMELABD L
%
Lam Wai Wah Beneficial owner 647,360 0.1904
MEE E=BEAA
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 2,590,120 0.7618
|mHE BEmBEAA
Cheung Tat Sang Beneficial owner 647,360 0.1904
SREAE EmliE A
Li Jian Hua (note 5) Interest of corporation 647,360 0.1904
controlled by the director
F e (fisEs) EREHEE R
Notes: BT

1. Lam Wai Wah is deemed to be interested in 74,844,000 ordinary shares 1. MEERR AEE 74844000 HERBERGE
of the Company, being the interests held beneficially by his spouse, wIFH AR AT R o
Chung King Yee, Cecilia.

2. Wong Pong Chun, James is deemed to be interested in 1,650,000 2. FIEWE RS 1,650,000 HERBREEER
ordinary shares of the Company, being the interests held beneficially by BHZARRR L BRERS -
his spouse, Lai Ching Mui, Stella.

3. Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 22,500 ordinary shares of the 3. R ERR A 22,500 % B E R B EHE S
Company, being the interests held by his spouse, Guo Yu Yan. BZARRA)EBERERS ©

4. Truly Opto-Electronics Limited, a company registered in the People’'s 4. EHXERGBRAR(RPEAREMEZFMZA
Republic of China, is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the A AARRBZEEIEEENB AR -
Company.

5. Registered capital contributed through Lhasa Development Zone Jianyuan 5. FRARPERGZNERERBRREEEERA
Investment Management Co., Ltd, a company wholly-owned by him. ARH 2 FMAEA -

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their B EXHEEEN R_ZT—WNF+_HA=+—H "
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares and S == A8 ABERA KR 7 sk A 1E5H
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated JAEZ IR MD MIERE D 2 TS SAR -
corporations as at 31 December 2014.
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Share Options

During the year, the Company has not adopted any share option
scheme.

Arrangement to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed above under the heading “Directors’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2014, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of Lam Wai Wah, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in the
issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company

B

FA - ARBERWEABRERTE

BEROIEZ 2ZH

R EX[EE 2 iy MARRR (0 #as PR ER 2 5b -
ARRHEEFAMER AR FALESEEFZ
P BUEARR ZE R A BB AR R ST
H A AN B 2 B B 75 M ES I o

FERR

Br BT R EBMEERE 2SI BIBAR
NEIEBREFRPEKEOEIBIEMREZES
REELMAER R_E—NE+=-_A=+—
H: THREEMEARRERARRZEHETT
RS BRER -

e
AABEREEE T L EMR

Percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
gz 2817 HAERR ZE BT
IR R A 514 ZERHE RAEBDL
Chan Kin Sun (note) Beneficial owner 158,950,000 5.47%
3= D) EmEBA
Held by spouse 54,208,000 1.86%
HELBEE
213,158,000 7.33%

Note: Chan Kin Sun and his spouse, Cheng Kwan Ying, Jennifer, are deemed to
be interested in 213,158,000 shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2014.

W - RESRERBEHRERAEE AR A
213,158,000 B B D #E 2 o
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has not yet adopted new share option scheme after
the previous share option scheme expired on 21 December 2013.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman lIslands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

Purchases, Sales or Redemption of Listed
Securities

During the year 2014, pursuant to the mandate to repurchase
shares of the Company obtained from the Company’s shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 21 May
2013 and 21 May 2014, the Company repurchased an aggregate of
12,494,000 ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$54,639,000 and all these shares
were subsequently cancelled by the Company and accounted for
approximately 0.4% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2014.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company's listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2014.

Model Code

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of information that
would reasonably indicate that the Company was not in the year
under review in compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Audit Committee

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
accordance with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “"Code”) for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group's financial reporting matters and
internal controls. The annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee which comprises all the three independent non-
executive directors namely Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, being the
Chairman, Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, and
Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, an executive director, as members.
They meet at least four times a year.

The Group has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

Remuneration and Nomination Committees

The Company has a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination
Committee respectively which were established in accordance
with the relevant requirements of the Code. The two Committees
are chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, an independent non-
executive director and comprise three other members, namely Mr.
Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, being independent
non-executive directors and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, an
executive director of the Company.
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Corporate Governance

The Board considers that good corporate governance of the
Company is essential to safeguarding the interests of the
shareholders and enhancing the performance of the Group. The
Board is committed to maintain and ensure high standards of
corporate governance. We have complied with all the applicable
code provisions set out in the “Corporate Governance Code”
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2014, except for a major deviation as below:

° Code Provision A.2.1 — The roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive are not separated and are performed by the
same individual, Mr. Lam Wai Wah. The Board will meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations
of the Company. The Board considers that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the Company’s management and believes that this
structure will enable us to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently.

o Code Provision A.5.6 — The nomination committee should
have a policy concerning diversity of board members, and
should disclose the policy in the corporate governance report.
During the year, the Nomination Committee of the Company
has set up a board diversity policy after discussion and
consideration. On 20 August 2014, the Nomination
Committee and the Board of the Company has adopted the
board diversity policy of the Company. The Company has
compiled with the Code Provision A.5.6 since then.

o Code Provision E.1.2 — The Chairman did not attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 21 May 2014
due to unexpected important business meeting.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision-making processes are regulated in
a proper and prudent manner. More details are contained in the
separate Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 35.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,449,000.

Auditors
A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Wai Wah
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015
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Board of Directors and Board Committees

The Board

The Board was responsible for the Company’s corporate
governance, and was ultimately accountable for the Company’s
activities, strategies and financial performance.

The Board was mainly responsible for formulating and approving
the business strategies, objectives, policies and plans of the
Company, and monitoring the execution of the Company's
strategies. It was also responsible for overseeing the operating and
financial performance of the Company and establishing appropriate
risk control policies and procedures in order to ensure that the
strategic objectives of the Company are materialized. In addition,
the Board was also responsible for improving the corporate
governance structure and enhancing communications with
shareholders.

The Board has delegated the responsibilities for the execution of
strategies and decision-making for day-to-day operation of the
Company to the management team headed by the Managing
Director, Mr. Lam Wai Wah.

The management reported regularly to the Board on the operating
and financial performance of the Company. Development,
expansion and other major capital expenditure and commitment, as
well as major financing decisions were all reviewed and approved
by the Board.

Connections between members of the Board

None of the members of the Board have any connections (including
financial, business, family relationship and other material/related
relationships) with each other during the period under review.

Director’s dealing in securities

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors had complied with their obligations
regarding dealings in securities under the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules during the period under review.

Non-executive directors

The non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term
but were subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.
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Independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards his independence
to the Company and considered that each of the independent non-
executive Directors was independent to the Company during the
period under review.

Directors’ Training

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses. The Company has been
encouraging the directors to participate continuous professional
development courses and seminars organized by professional
institutions or professional firms and reading materials on relevant
topics so that they can continuously update and further improve
their relevant knowledge and skills.

In addition, the Company Secretary reports from time to time the
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors
with written materials.

Board committees

The Board was supported by three Board Committees. Each Board
Committee has its own responsibilities, power and functions. The
chairman of the respective Board Committees reported to the
Board from time to time and made recommendations on matters
discussed when appropriate.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of
reference, which have been revised by the Board on 26 March
2012 pursuant to the CG Code, setting out the Remuneration
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Chung Kam
Kwong, an independent non-executive director and comprise three
other members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung
Kai Sing, being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Wong
Pong Chun, James, an executive director of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and
structure of the remuneration of the directors and senior
management and the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the directors for the year are set out in
Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Four meetings were held during the year by the Remuneration
Committee to review the remuneration packages and assess the
performance of executive directors and the director’'s fees of the
independent non-executive directors. All members of the
Remuneration Committee attended the said meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the nomination committee (the
Nomination Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 26 March 2012 and 20
August 2014 pursuant to the CG Code, setting out the Nomination
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong,
an independent non-executive director and comprise three other
members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai
Sing, being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Wong
Pong Chun, James, an executive director of the Company.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis and
to make recommendations to the Board on matters relating to any
proposed changes.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
its approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Four meetings were held during the year by the Nomination
Committee to review the nomination procedures and the current
composition of the Board. All members of the Nomination
Committee attended the said meeting.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee is governed by its terms of reference, which have been
revised by the Board on 26 March 2012 pursuant to the CG Code,
setting out the Audit Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee comprises all the three independent non-
executive directors namely Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, being the
Chairman, Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, and
Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, an executive director, as members.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
provide supervision over the Group's financial reporting matters
and internal controls.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year. All
members of the Audit Committee attended the said meeting.

The Board Meetings, Board Committees Meetings and
General Meeting

EVLZECMER-BBIUNFNTEEER L
E(RBeXF) REHEFEERBMALE(ZR
GKE)  ARMITESEEANRELE(ZEEKE)
MK - BERZBEGZIERAERENRERAE
B BRI EE R ARREIE -

FR BERZEERTHNAEE - 2RBERZE
EREHEHFE LB EE -

Exees ESSZE293URRKREK

=

REBZE-_T—NFE+_A=+—HBILFE &E=F
REFEEH EFSZEeTRUMBRRE

The Directors’ attendances at the Board Meetings, the Board
Committees Meetings and General Meeting for the year ended 31

December 2014 were as follows: ZEEERET
Number of meetings attended
HESERE
General

Board Board Committees Meeting

BE=g ExgZEg BRERE
Director Audit Remuneration Nomination
= B Eri RrE
Executive directors:
HITES:
Lam Wai Wah 19 n/a n/a n/a 0
MEZE TEA TNEA TiE A
Wong Pong Chun, James 19 4 4 4 1
=L
Cheung Tat Sang 18 n/a n/a n/a 0
SREAE T EA T iEA TEA
Li Jian Hua 18 n/a n/a n/a 0
T TEA NiE A A
Independent non-executive directors:
BYFHITES :
Chung Kam Kwong 6 4 4 4 1
R
Heung Kai Sing 6 4 4 4 1
Ip Cho Ting, Spencer 6 4 4 4 1
HEH=
Total number of meeting(s) held 19 4 4 4 1
BTRBBE

¥ B 2 5 BN

HE-_ZT-—NF+_A=+—HILFE XHT
ARARINEIZ BN 2 & %% 3,480,000/8 7T °

Auditor’'s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the fees paid to the
Company'’s external auditors amounted to HK$3,480,000.
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Internal Control

The Board was fully responsible for the maintenance of a sound
and effective internal control system within the Group. Throughout
the year from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014, the Board
conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the internal control
system in all material respects including but not limited to
operational, financial, risk management and compliance controls.
The Group’s system of internal control comprised a well-defined
organizational and management structure with levels and limits of
authority which was established to help achieve business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized access or
disposal, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records to
produce reliable management and financial information for internal
use and for publication purpose, help management mitigate
potential risk factors and ensure compliance with relevant rules and
regulations. The system was designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems so as to achieve the Group's objectives and long-term
goals.

The Group's internal control system comprised the following five
components:

(1) Organizational and Management Structure — the Group has
established an organizational and management structure with
operating policies and procedures, lines of responsibilities
and delegated authority has already been established.

(2)  Authority and Control — the relevant executive Directors and
senior management have been delegated with respective
levels of authorities with regard to key corporate strategy and
policy, contractual commitments and the dealing of price
sensitive information.

(3)  Budgetary Control and Management and Financial Reporting
— budgets have been prepared by senior management
including various department heads and were subject to
review and approval by the executive Directors on a regular
basis prior to being adopted. Operating results against
budgets have been analyzed and reported to the executive
Directors as a reference to monitor the Group's strategy and
policy. Regular reviews by the Audit Committee and audits by
external auditors respectively have been carried out to ensure
the preparation of the management information and
consolidated financial statements are in accordance with the
generally accepted accounting principles, the Group’s
accounting policies and applicable laws and regulations.
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(4)  Systems and Procedures — systems and procedures have
been established to identify, measure, manage and control
various risks including business, compliance, operational,
financial and information that may have an impact on the
Group and each major department. Exposure to these risks
was monitored by the executive Directors and the
management with reference to the regular reports produced
by the Audit Committee and the external auditors.

(5)  Internal Audit — the Audit Committee has performed
independent reviews of the controls and risks identified to
ensure that adequate controls have been put in place and risk
elements have been properly addressed.

According to the review results of the Audit Committee for the
year from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014, the Group's
internal control system is functioning effectively and there was no
significant weakness found in the course of the review processes.
The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control systems and is of the opinion that there are no suspected
frauds, irregularities, internal control deficiencies or suspected
infringement of laws, rules and regulations that cause the Board to
believe that the systems of internal control are ineffective or
inadequate. The Board is satisfied that the Company and the Group
have fully complied with the code provisions on internal control as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code for the aforesaid year.

Financial Reporting

The directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements for the year 2014. The Management also provides all
directors with monthly updates giving them a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company's performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08
and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
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Company Secretary

The position of Company Secretary is held by Mr. Ma Wai Tong,
CFO of the Group. The Company Secretary reported to the Board
chairman from time to time. All directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

Since Mr. Ma was appointed in 2011, he has to take no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training for the financing year
commencing on or after 1 January 2012 and he has fulfilled the
requirement during the year under review.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All
resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each shareholder meeting.

Investor Relations

(1) Communication with Shareholders and Procedures
for putting forward proposals at general meetings
All published information, including financial statements,
results announcements, circulars and notices of general
meetings and associated explanatory documents
are promptly posted on the Group’'s website at
www.truly.com.hk. Viewers can also send enquiries and
proposals putting forward for shareholders’ consideration at
shareholder meetings to the Board or senior management by
email at enquiry@truly.com.hk or directly by raising questions
at the general meeting of the Company.

(2) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an

extraordinary general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") of the
Company. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at the general meeting of the
Company may send a written request to the Board of the
Company to request for a EGM. The written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholders concerned, must state the
purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company'’s principle place of business in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\EEFE iﬁth

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general
meetings may follow the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

(3) Constitutional Documents
There was no change to the Company’'s Memorandum and
Articles of Association during the financial year 2014. A copy
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association is posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises the importance of diversity to corporate
governance and the board effectiveness.

The purpose of this policy is to set out the basic principles to be
followed to ensure that the board of directors (the “Board”) has
the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and to maintain high standards of corporate governance.

Board nomination and appointments will continue to be made on
merit basis based on its business needs from time to time while
taking into account diversity.

Selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and
specific needs, including but not limited to gender, race, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry experience
and professional experience.

NP
BREBAME 2T

—IHRERZBRAE

(3) BEXH
BE_T-FIWREE  AR8ZAH
ERAMNMARNL EERNES - HEEIEKR
0 R AR R 2 BI AR B IR A B R Bt S A ut 1)
& o

EEEMESTILBE

ARARAEEEREETLHEEE ARES
BITZERMNERE -

ABREEIIHABUENELRRA  UEREF
2((EFS)OREAEREE BRUALRGEANS
LT HEREENTE  EMRAZEFEENE

MOB VR REF BIREM DR EAKF

EEORENIRBEZTBEENRAES AR
Bl LEBENEEERARE TEEBESR
BEZu b o

BIRBEABU-RI ST BB SEE U2
%$ AMEBEANFERL  BREETRR
HHl - Bk BE XILBER HEES 7%
EERAMB R -

—MEFEH o FRERERAT > 35



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBENRES

Deloitte.

REh - BRI BEENT

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

58 35/F, One Pacific Place
IE T B88H 88 Queensway
LE\ ANOEH—EE351E Hong Kong
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HEFERERAARR

TRULY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Truly
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to
122, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BIAZBENRES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2014 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVEINCOME
SeRnRkAtZEERE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « BE—ZE—NE+_A=+—HILEE

2014 2013
—Z-mF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Revenue Wz 5 21,415,651 20,680,750
Cost of sales HEKAR (18,929,229) (17,788,815)
Gross profit EF 2,486,422 2,891,935
Other income HA 7 124,494 109,492
Other gains and losses HiiRas 8 (45,096) (2,320)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At ERERERE
investments (7,216) -
Administrative expenses THER (429,478) (479,496)
Distribution and selling expenses SEREEER (395,733) (325,923)
Finance costs BER 9 (93,890) (78,974)
Share of result of an associate N lal =N ES (17,502) -
Profit before tax HAE A 1,622,001 2,114,714
Income tax expense PSR X 10 (372,725) (346,447)
Profit for the year REEHH " 1,249,276 1,768,267
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEBA
for the year
Items that may be reclassified AIBER BB EF 82
subsequently to profit or loss: BmiEE
Exchange differences arising BEBIINEBEE L
on translation of foreign operations GNE ZFE (203,978) 257,243
Fair value (loss) gain on available-for-sale AEHERE AT EE
investments (B518) Wess (58,052) 115,008
Share of exchange differences arising DB ERE N RIES
on translation of an associate 2 HNEEE 1,745 -
(260,285) 372,251
Reclassification to profit or loss on HAEHERERE
impairment loss of available-for-sale BREENDEZERE
investments 2,743 -
Total comprehensive income for the year — AFE 2 EUW A 2% 991,734 2,140,518
Profit for the year attributable to: REFE R -
Owners of the Company RABER A 1,118,369 1,619,990
Non- controlling interests EE g T 130,907 148,277
1,249,276 1,768,267
Total comprehensive income for the REEZHERABEEER. :
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company Vi/NETE Z=DN 868,017 1,980,830
Non- controlling interests R R 123,717 159,688
991,734 2,140,518
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER 15
Basic (HK cents per share) EAR(FREN) 38.41 57.43
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
meMEkAR

At31 December2014 « R=—F—NE+=-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—mEF —E—=fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo FET FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 16 6,780,598 5,617,293
Prepaid lease payments B EFRTE 17 147,966 154,498
Intangible assets mHEE 18 49 191
Goodwill [EES] 413 413
Interest in an associate i AN s e 19 734,843 153,480
Available-for-sale investments Al HERE 20 133,500 178,662
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE = 29 8,867 9,227
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, FL U EE % - E M&E
plant and equipment YET® 138,956 56,736
7,945,192 6,070,500
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories e 21 1,511,346 1,489,150
Prepaid lease payments FENEEFIE 17 4,102 4,161
Trade and other receivables JE U BRTE K7 EL fth E U Fh T8 23 5,578,212 5,908,389
Tax recoverable EEE 26,442 437
Bank balances and cash RITEFEMARS 24 3,663,710 2,805,714
10,783,812 10,207,851
Non-current assets held for sale BIEHENIEREEE 25 2,524 2,580
10,786,336 10,210,431
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and other payables JE AT IR T8 K2 A JE S BB 26 5,657,407 5,029,234
Tax liabilities HIEAaE 31,423 83,634
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured $R7T & E ith &% - MK 27 4,568,555 2,949,189
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 28 33,462 -
10,290,847 8,061,957
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 495,489 2,148,474
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEBERADES
LIABILITIES 8,440,681 8,218,974
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERF
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured $R17 K& EfbfE 5k - MmiEm 27 868,739 934,631
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 29 48,583 57,487
917,322 992,118

7,523,359 7,226,856
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AaMBIKRAR

At31December2014 « R=—FE—NE+=-A=+—H

2014 2013
=F-mFE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHIT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR#EiE

Share capital & A 30 58,142 58,392
Share premium and reserves 1% 0% B K & 7,018,764 6,845,728

Equity attributable to owners of the ViN/NEIE ¥ PN
Company 7,076,906 6,904,120
Non-controlling interests eI i 446,453 322,736
Total equity R 4EEE 7,523,359 7,226,856

The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 122 were HNREIBBEEFB 102 BV EAHBBRRER -
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18  —HE=A+/\BEEE e L FENE - I

March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: AU TALTRERESE
Lam Wai Wah Wong Pong Chun, James
MIEE =%

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

3 EFE

40 > Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ReERERR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_—Z—MNE+_-_A=+—HILEE

EQUITY

Total equity
attributable
Share Capital Investment to owners Non-
Share Share options Special redemption  Exchange Other revaluation  Retained of the controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve profits  Company interests
YN
BRE - BEAERE
BA  RHAEE RE  RARE EERE NERE  HtRE REER RERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TR TR AT TAL TAL BT T
(note a)
Hfita)
At 1 January 2013 RZB-=%
-A-B 55,295 545,520 10,000 990 148 780,837 845,023 1584 2,737,842 4,977,239 163,048 5,140,287
Profit for the year AR - - - - - - - - 161999 1619990 148277 1768267
Other comprehensive ~ AEFH
income for the year 2ERA
—Exchange differences — HE £
arising on translation FEEZ
of foreign operations MNEZHE - - - - - 15832 - - - 8% A 257,243
— Fair value gain on —AEHERE
available-for-sale ZRTEE
investments W - - - - - - - 115,008 - 115,008 - 115,008
Total comprehensive ~ KEEZE
income for the year hoN:t: - - - - - 245,832 - 115,008 1,619,990 1,980,830 159,688 2,140,518
Transfer = - - - - - - 162,367 - (162,367) - - -
Dividends recognisedas 2 AAEZRE
distribution (note 14) (M5 14) - = - - - - - - (340671)  (340671) - (340671
Issue of shares upon ~ RERIEEEE
exercise of share options 247117 3566 366,714 (10,000) - - - - - 6,667 366947 - 366,947
Share repurchasedand ~ 2EEEI K
cancelled BB ey (79,750 - - 469 - - - ey (80225 - 02
At31December 2013  R-E-=%
+-A=1+-H 58,392 832,478 - 990 617 1,026,669 1,007,390 116,592 3,860,992 6,904,120 322,736 7,226,856
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - - - - 1118369 1,118,369 130,907 1,249,276
Other comprehensive ~ AEEEMZME
income for the year WA
—Exchange differences — &GN £
arising on translation FEEZ
of foreign operations NEZE - - - - - (196,788) - - - (196,788) (7,190)  (203,978)
— Exchange differences — 8 RA A7)
arising on translation FEEZ
of an associate MEZEE = = = - - 1,745 - - - 1,745 - 1,745
—Fairvaluglosson ~ — AfEHERE
available-for-sale RTEERE
investments - - - - - - - (58,052) - (58,052) - (58,052)
—Reclassificationto ~~ — EHHEE
profit or loss on BRmAE
impairment loss of HERE
available-for-sale FEEE
investments - - - - - - - 2,743 - 2,743 - 2,143
Total comprehensive  REE2ERA
income for the year k) = = = = - (195,043 = (55,309) 1,118,369 868,017 123,717 991,734
Transfer EFd - = = - - - 182 - (127822) - - -
Dividends recognised as A AD R 2 &
dstribution (note 14) (B 14) - - - - = . = - (640428)  (640428) - led0az)
Share repurchased and ~ BEE K
canceled BHERR (250)  (54,450) - - 250 - - - (250)  (54,700) - (54,700)
Transaction cost BERRAERS
attributable RHRE
to share repurchased - (103) = = - - - - - (103) - (103)
At31December 2014 R-Z-ME
+-A=+-H 58,142 771,925 - 990 867 831,626  1,135212 61,283 4,210,861 7,076,906 446,453 7,523,359
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FEERBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZE—Z—NE+_-_A=+—HI-EE

(a) The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisitions.

(b) Other reserves comprise:

(i) the statutory surplus reserve and the enterprise expansion reserve
of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") other than Hong Kong. According to the Articles of
Association of the PRC subsidiaries, a percentage of net profit as
reported in the PRC statutory accounts should be transferred to
the statutory surplus reserve and the enterprise expansion reserve
determined at the discretion of the board of directors of these
companies. The statutory surplus reserve can be set off against
accumulated loss whilst the enterprise expansion reserve can be
used for expansion of production facilities or an increase in
registered capital; and

(ii) difference between the carrying amount of interest in a subsidiary

disposed of and the consideration received arising from the
decrease in equity interest in a subsidiary.

42 > Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014

(a)  FrRIREEIEPTEN B AR Z B EEEAR R R
BmBRTIEROHEERNERZZHE -

b)  HiREEEE

(i)

(ii)

EREARLNE (THED(TREEE) KL
ZBRRZEERBHEREROEERMEE -
RETEMBERARZAMERAA - hEIEE
RENERANETAS L AEBEEEER
HREBLEEBREE ZEOLIBEERER
ANEZEGEMIBERE A ERBRHFETIEER
FHER - MEXERFEHITANEREER
HESIEINGEMEA - R

& — RPN B A Rk e 2 R E (B L Y B8 2 A AR
AEDBLEEZ DR ERE ZMHE
o



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RelaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE_—Z—-FE+=-B=+—HILFE

2014 AONIC]
—E-NF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET F&TT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Profit before tax A A 1,622,001 2,114,714
Adjustments for: -
Interest income B A (39,932) (26,916)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale Al E R EREEE
investments 7,216 -
Amortisation of technical know-how S IE % 142 142
Allowance for (reversal of) doubtful debts REREE (BE) 1,551 508
Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant %1% « E K& B EFTE K
and equipment 758,811 619,334
Release of prepaid lease payments FEBRIETHEFRIA 4,688 4,102
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, plantand & “H#it5¥¥E « BE&
equipment R EE 31,214 80,406
Loss on fair value changes of derivative financial $T4 4@ T A2 AFEE
instruments FEEia 33,971 -
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HEFENEIERBEE
held for sale pal & - (312)
Share of loss of an associate D REEE N R EIE 17,502 -
Finance costs e R 93,890 78,974
Dividends from available-for-sale investments AHHEREZRE (2,265) -
Scrip dividend from available-for-sale AR ERE 2 AR E
investments (17,363) -
Operating cash flows before movements in KT BESEHRI 2
working capital KRERERE 2,511,426 2,870,952
Increase in inventories FEEM (54,797) (444,308)
Decrease (increase) in trade and JE WS AR TE % B Ath R M ER IR
other receivables A ($E ) 246,688 (1,785,493
Increase in trade and other payables S BRTA N E b A5 FRIE LS 1 628,477 1,867,981
Settlement of derivative financial instruments HEITESRIT A (509) -
Cash generated from operations KE TR RS 3,331,285 2,509,132
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BAEEFEH (135,456) (35,381)
PRC withholding tax paid AP EEHN (57,443) (30,931)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EHR B RS (260,127) (340,576)
Tax paid for other jurisdictions Hh RERE R B HRIE (4,026) (560)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES SEEBMERLTE 2,874,233 2,101,684
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
melaRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HZE—ZF—E+_A=1+—HIEE

2014
—2-MF
HK$'000
FET

2013
—EB—=F
HK$'000
FHIT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER
Dividends received from available-for-sale BERAIHEEREZRE

investments 2,265 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEWMZE - WEKEE (2,178,923) (1,184,242)
Purchase of available-for-sale investment EEAHIERE - (15,340)
Investment in an associate R—RBE R 2 "E (600,480) (153,480)
Deposits paid for acquisition of FUEEYZE - BB AR

property, plant and equipment SR # (82,220) (49,400)
Interest received [N 39,932 26,916
Proceeds from disposals of HEYE  BEKEE

property, plant and equipment Fri5 5008 9,396 2,416
Proceeds from disposals of HEREHEFRBEE

non-current assets held for sale Fri8 5078 = 524
Placement of guarantee fund GFRiRES (36,486) -
Placement of bank deposits FHERITER (281,595) (479,363)
Withdrawal of bank deposits FRERIRT TR 281,595 587,642
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHFARSFHE (2,846,516) (1,264,327)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERITREMEE (8,437,780) (5,765,104)
Dividends paid EARIRE (611,420) (323,203)
Interest paid BEAFE (93,890) (78,974)
Proceeds from issue of shares FHBITEERETITRD

through exercise of share options Fri8 5078 - 366,947
Payment on repurchase of shares EAE v e (54,803) (80,225)
New bank and other borrowings raised FERITREMEE 10,022,652 6,495,097
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHMERSFEE 824,759 614,538
NET INCREASE IN CASH ReRkRESESHEEEEMTFE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 852,476 1,451,895
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHzREeRRELEEER

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,805,714 1,330,711
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ERggHooE

CHANGES (30,966) 23,108
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FHRZ7ZESRESZEHER

OF THE YEAR, BIRTTHEFRIRS

represented by bank balances and cash 3,627,224 2,805,714
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE_—Z—-FE+=-B=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company. The Company is a public limited company with its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr.
Lam Wai Wah, who is also the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “General Information” to the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars which is different from the functional
currency of the Company, as the directors of the Company
consider that Hong Kong dollars is the most appropriate
presentation currency in view of its place of listing.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of
manufacture and sale of liquid crystal display (“LCD")
products including touch panel products and electronic
consumer products including personal health care products
and electrical devices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « BE—F—NE+_A=+—HIEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Application of amendments to HKFRSs and a new
Interpretation

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
and a new Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in
the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities

2.

FE R ¥ R] K ARIEET BB M B
ZRA(TEBHBHREER )
FERERMBHRERED (BFT) RH2E

RAFE AEEEERERNATHEES
SR AE ((HEGTEAE ) BEM2BBY

BEER(EF]) R -

BERUBEMERRE 10  REER

BERPBRELER

F12WBBB G R

8275 (183])

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and BB ETERFE 325 KiHTREER
Financial Liabilities (1&3]) EREE

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount EASHERZE 365 FEREEY
Disclosures for Non-Financial (1&3]) BlEEX
Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and EBSHERE 395 METAZERER
Continuation of Hedge (1&E]) et A
Accounting

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies BE (BRMBmERE B8

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs and
new Interpretation in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers®
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation

and Amortisation®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions*
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 includes the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further amended
in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge
accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued
in 2014 mainly to include (a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and (b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by introducing
a 'fair value through other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

48 > Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014

2.

R REEITEBMBRE
HA((ERMBREED D @)

ERMBREENEIN[ERMITA ]
—RENFEM BBV B RELENE R
SINERMEEDENFGEZHRE - AERR
T -TFBRIZBEAV B RELERE R
BREAMBLGESRABRNARBUBERZR
E YR T -=FE-FEITARREH
BEDAZHRE - R-T—MERMNES
P HmEERIF IS — KEFTiRA T Z N
A BRTREENRERE RO ESE
THEEFTASIAREMEERKANRA
FEEIR] GFEER OB RAERTE
EHBRER -

AR BHRELERE I 2 F ZH Efut
T

BEEGFENFER [2MTA - @R
AEIBREANMACEATMEERRER
BSHRAHI N T EEFE - FHE - BOA
WRAEHNRERE 2 XBRANTE ZE
REMANBRSREBAERNAE RARE
BAGZNEZEBRE » —RIREKRES
HIRA&E B Z BHEK A E - R B RRE
WEIEHREREMNESRHERE 2 XHR
AFRBEZEB TR  UREREE/ DK
RERBERHELEZRSREER/INARN
ERHREEASHEZEBTE  HRE
M EERANRFEEIRE - TAEM
BEBRERBEAREGERERRENREHE
AZRFEERE - 1o RBEBM R
SERNFE IS - BRI N A BRI hEERE
Hip 2ERAF 2R E GEHRHEESR)
ZEBRANEEZS  WEABSPEIK
BN

REREERENS @ BEEGTERIFE39
BRTNREELEEEREAGEAR &
B EREERIE SRR ERBEHEERRE
BAGHE - FHEERERAREZEENS
BEAHBEMEEERAZSEEER L
BHIEBAR - URREERR B VHER
URz&8 -85 BABGRERER
HENA ERIEE R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE_=-F

v L R =gt Bl

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future will have impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group's available-for-sale investments. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

2.

FE R ¥ R] K ARIEET BB M B
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In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a BBV BREEUNEIGRN T —NF £
single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting A HEEBE—2mEER  #HEEA

for revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance

HEBEPAENEEZWEAR - REBWH
HEERFE 15 ARIR - HAFFE IR

including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts REBSTENE 18 Wzl &FFgst
and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective. ERFEISRRESY ] MEBEREZ K=

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a b-step approach to revenue
recognition:

EEWL,\TE %|

ERMBRMEREYNFE ISR IRORURE
EAERELAEFERAHEmIRT 2
Wan a8 - R RRZE BRI RIEZ
FEMAMGARRESZRE - ARgME -
ZERS| AR WS 2 AE LR -

e Step1: ldentify the contract(s) with a customer o  F—H: HAEEPIIUIED

e Step2: lIdentify the performance obligations in the o FZH: FREHRZBHEMR
contract

o Step 3:  Determine the transaction price o E=4 BERXSE

e Step4:  Allocate the transaction price to the o FNF: BRPIEIWEEEHDZ
performance obligations in the contract BXHET

e Stepb:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity o FHAL: REEENBELHEER (X

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) BIEFBYHEHREEDEIGHE TN T
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the FRIB 49 E (BB (SRt ) BRI E - BIARETE

goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more

Fhitt) R U ER

BHOBMEMRBEcEmeERG2 [1EHI#E ] &
BTEFPE - BAMBEWMELENF 165D

prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal MERIE R ZBRIE AN AERE S| -
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures UEoh - BB R E LR FE 15 ERKERF

are required by HKFRS 15.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate
financial statements

° At cost

o In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (or
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for entities that have not yet adopted
HKFRS 9), or

o Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to be
an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it
shall account for the change from the date when the change
in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 27 will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

3. EESHBXR

&RER
AR BRRCIERE AT ASEH
EEHREENEE - 1O A BHR
ROFEEERAREFARATNES LM
AR B A R (5325) 5% 2 8 A
BEH -

mAERE

I X FrE & st BUR B - 425 B 153
RIRIBELRAE RS - ETIRAFE
BFFE2 S TERS  ELKA—BRIRE
RENRRERANREZ A HEETE -

RFBEREMS2EE 2 MEFTERET
MEFRZHHE—REEMBRIHIERL
BR-RAEMXMNOER  BRZERE
ERERINERERRAE MM ERIME
HEEE - EHEEXREN R FEERED
et AEEEETMSE2EEETER
RZEERBBETEER S SEEMNML
B - EAGEPBREPAEN LT
MAFEEDELER ETAETE - BFE
B 75 5 2 RIS 2 57 80 B M H) LA B R T
X 2RS - BERGFERF1I7THREBEERN
MHEERS - URERFEERUELIEA
FEAEMSEGIW - BB ERE 2R
TERERFEXES G ENEI6RET
MR EE) BRI o

—EEFR o ENERERAT > 51



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « BE—F—NE+_A=+—HIEE

Jd

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

3.

FESHBEK®)

BB (E)

BEoN - IRIBEAFEEFEZHABENATEHR
BERHEEEENTEENEZEZENES A
F— FE-XE=E UERKBREZR
ot

s FEMBAEREBERERE
mEMS LBRRRANEEKREN
BRECKTHE)

s FE_EMBAEERKESEF EXN
RENIN TERAMERBRFIN
BEXBENBAE: &

s F-BHNBAEBREEXLRBETAE
RIFEIMBAE -

TESBEREINNT -

REREZEE
FAMBRREBEARALARAEHZE
BLEMBAR 2 MBHRE - HEATER
AR R BEFIEGIAE -

*  has power over the investee; o FIHKREHRITHEES
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its o RALHEEEHR 2 XK M ESHE

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

An investment in associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group
(such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate is
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEETBE®W

(continued)

Non-current assets held for sale BEHEFRBERE

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their MRS EEZ RAETEZABHEERSM
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale EFBEEFRAKE - BIEEBEABEHE -
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition RENZEE ] BNRS LAIR N M AR S — 8 24K
is regarded as met only when the asset is available for BRIE ) 2 H S I8 VERNES B & A K HAR AT B

immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such asset and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs of disposal.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated EESEAEBZReRMENTFH(EHE
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when Ei) BEZEMNANREEEREZDRE

there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 « BE—F—NE+_A=+—HIEE

Jd

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Rental income

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE_—T-NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and building held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
development as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of the
items of property, plant and equipment (other than properties
under development) less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied purpose
Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. When
buildings are in the course of development for production or
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included
as part of costs of buildings under construction. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 « BE—F—NE+_A=+—HIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEEXR®
(continued)
Leasing HnE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE_—Z—-FE+=-B=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rate
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « BE—F—NE+_A=+—HIEE

Jd

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from "profit before tax’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE_—T-NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEEXR®
(continued)

Taxation (continued) BE &)

Deferred tax EERIE

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 « BE—F—NE+_A=+—HIEE

Jd

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEEXR®
(continued)

Taxation (continued) BE &)

Current and deferred tax for the year AEEXRHRIEERIE

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including acquired technical know-how with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE_—Z—-FE+=-B=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBX®
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued) BEEE &)
Research and development expenditure (continued) MEER(E)

The amount initially recognised for an internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 « BE—F—NE+_A=+—HIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEEXR®
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SRT A (&)
Financial assets EMEE

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date

AEBz2RMEEDERER LUK
RAHHESREE - nBIRRERMEE
ZHEERBR - WRIEHERSET - i8
N—BITABBEZEREEDRETEANE
EHANIURER - —ROABEREER
R RAEHMREZKRARNZ S

basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales MEEEE -
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the

time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method BEEFEE

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, fixed
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE_—Z—-FE+=-B=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEEX®
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SRIEE)
Financial assets (continued) ERMEEE)
Available-for-sale financial assets FitHESHMEE

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL").

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains
and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined
based on the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBX®
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SRIEE)
Financial assets (continued) ERMEEE)
Impairment of financial assets EHEERE

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments or observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBX®
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SRIEE)
Financial assets (continued) EMEE ()
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREERE (&)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and loan receivable,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEETBE®W

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SRIEE)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments SRIBERERTR

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group E@E“@ﬁf T BERERTAETIRE
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in DEIIZARLTEIZEEHS B ENRES

accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

TAZEENERERAEERD -

Equity instruments B#TH
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual R TAENLERHAEENINRMEaE%R 2

interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bank
and other borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE_—Z—-FE+=-B=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEEX®
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SRIEE)
Derivative financial instruments fTEemMI A

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

-=

TETARITLANKIFRA T EERE
R HERNBEPREE AR A FEEEH
B AEMBZBEBNRET ABER -
WMABEITAE T ARIEE AB M E R TAR
BRON - FEUIERT - EEIBERERZFHE
HEURR SRR 2 1EE -

BUHRERR

EREERDBREREZARENE 2
H JEEZCREEMSEMAR BN
B RR R ERER TS BB - AIRE
BEBUHEREMEE - MAKERERET
BREMAEZBAE D RN D HEE
B MefETEtCBRemEE  AE
BERENEECREEZLEBEINZ
HEARE - HAKRERECERESREEMN
BRZBRBMARKLER - BAKEES
ERZeREE  TEREKMZMAEFA
ERERER -

REEBUAERCMEER  EERmER
B R ERKEANZ Z5 SR EETHE

<7
ol

ERESAKEZETERR - EHEH
B AREST EBUERRESRAR - BUHHE
RzemAaERaERDNRENREZE
B BRBERETER -

—TIEFR o ERERERAT > 69



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « BE—F—NE+_A=+—HIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE®

(continued)

Share-based payment transactions LR AEREIRN2ZRS
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions MESHEEUBRNAEERIHZXS
Share options granted to employees BFEEZERE

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the date of grant is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in the share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE_—Z—-FE+=-B=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTHBE®

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible BEREFREE (BERM) 2REEE
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting (REXEBEEEZEBER) (&)
policy in respect of goodwill above) (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to ] U [B] 4 58 Th A B E R s E R A B A E
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated BHRSE - £ L EREER  HEtRK
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using WEAESFERAMIITERIFTREZHIRE » %
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market PR R R EEREEE /TS ET &
assessments of the time value of money and the risks ARIBEREMFTAKHER  BERETEE -
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash

flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating MIEEtEE (BE S HEERMN) 2o 458
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the EBREERE B (SRSHEERN) ZE
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is HEBEEIREERKESEE - BlEEEAD
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is B IER -

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the R EEEEZRD  EEEE (IR
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is M) ZEmEBENEEn kR 4£5E Y
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, LAEET(HEHE - HPTIE I 2 BRI E T 58 :A
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed ZIBEE (R SHEEM) REFEETE
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no HRREEIESFEEE 2 REE - BEE
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash BRI B MBS ER ©

generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT 4. BAESTTHERMATTERELEN

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimation (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification of Truly (Hui Zhou) Smart Display Limited (“Truly HZ")
as an associate

Note 19 describes that Truly HZ is an associate of the Group
although the Group has 53% ownership interest and voting
rights in Truly HZ. Other than the Group, there are two other
shareholders in Truly HZ. The directors assessed whether or
not the Group has control over Truly HZ based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of Truly HZ unilaterally. Resolutions for relevant
activities of Truly HZ require approval in shareholders’
meetings as stated in the Articles of Association of Truly HZ.
In making their judgement, the directors considered the
requirements for shareholders’ meeting as stated in the
Articles of Association of Truly HZ, in which it states a
shareholders’ meeting cannot be held without the presence
of either one of the other two shareholders, and legal
opinions obtained from an independent lawyer practicing in
the PRC. On this basis, the directors concluded that the
Group does not have control but significant influence over
Truly HZ because any resolutions to be passed in
shareholders’ meetings shall have the consent from either
one of the other shareholders demonstrated by their action of
being present in the meetings. Accordingly Truly HZ is
classified as an associate of the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its trade and bills
receivables at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether those trade receivables have suffered an impairment
loss. Management has exercised judgement when estimating
the timing and future cash flows expected to be derived from
the trade receivables and ascertain their future cash flows.
Where the future cash flows of a receivable is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss will be
provided for such a receivable and recognised in the profit
and loss.

As detailed in note 23, as at 31 December 2014, trade and
bills receivables amounting to HK$5,048,360,000 (2013:
HK$5,385,059,000) are expected to be settled within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. In determining
the amount of receivable, the management has exercised
judgement in estimating the timing and future cash flows to
be recovered and determined no impairment was necessary
at the end of the reporting period. If the actual cash flows or
timing of recovery are different from expectation, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Estimated outcome of a litigation

As at 31 December 2014, a subsidiary of the Company is a
defendant in a legal action in Italy involving the alleged
defective goods manufactured by the subsidiary according to
its customers’ designs and specifications. The claim against
the subsidiary is approximately Euro 7.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$68 million) in aggregate. The directors
believe, based on legal advice, that the case has legal and
factual grounds to defend and therefore it is not probable that
losses (including claims for costs) will be incurred. As a result,
no provision has been made at the end of the reporting period
in this regard.
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5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and
receivable on the sale of goods during the year, net of sales
tax, trade discounts and returns, and is analysed as follows:

Wz

WREFAEmMIHE 2 B W R B PAERIE
BENREEN BHWERRE - HiTQ
T

2014 2013

—E-NFE  —F=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Sales of LCD products HERBBETSRED 18,539,879 18,135,615
Sales of electronic consumer products HEBFEEER 2,875,772 2,545,135
21,415,651 20,680,750

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance focuses on the sales of different types of
products. Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing
market rates. Thus the Group is currently organised into two
operating segments which are sales of LCD products and
electronic consumer products. The information for each
operating segment is as follows:

— manufacture and distribution of LCD
products and touch panel products

LCD products

Electronic consumer — manufacture and distribution of
products electronic consumer products
such as compact camera module,
personal health care products and
electrical devices
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEER®
Segment revenues and results PTEWERES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REBIRGERREDEE| DR REE
results by operating and reportable segments: DT
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—_Z2-—-ME+-_A=+—HLEE
Electronic
LCD consumer Segment
products products total Eliminations Consolidated
REE BT
BEREEMm HEER SEAE #iH oy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT THET THET
REVENUE g
External sales G 18,639,879 2,875,772 21,415,651 - 21,415,651
Inter-segment sales DIEEEE - 397,586 397,586 (397,586) -
18,639,879 3,273,358 21,813,237 (397,586) 21,415,651
RESULT B
Segment result DEER 1,689,436 97,051 1,786,487 (14,588) 1,771,899
Finance costs B % & (93,890)
Unallocated expenses 9B Z (56,008)
Profit before tax T B A 1,622,001
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-_ZT—=F+-_A=1+—HILFE
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Eliminations  Consolidated
Renis B
BRBEm HEEM s # 3 e
HK$'000 HK$'000 ‘ HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti57 Ti57 TiH7T TH7T
REVENUE 25
External sales HMH 18,135,615 2,645,135 20,680,750 - 20,680,750
Inter-segment sales HIEHEHEE - 391,345 391,345 (391,345) -
18,135,615 2,936,480 21,072,095 (391,345) 20,680,750
RESULT E
Segment result Ak E 1,985,130 248,212 2,233,342 (8,658) 2,224,784
Finance costs 95 E (78,974)
Unallocated expenses k% FR Bz (31,096)
Profit before tax AR F 2,114,714
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) TEER®)
Segment revenues and results (continued) PEWERESE)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, loss on fair value changes of derivative financial

BENBRNEFHREREIME 2 A& H
SRR B - nEaNERD BRI R RTT
HERKA EFHD TEEMIART
EBEZEELMEERNE S BEMRIUL
Mol BAETELERRERSADEER

instruments and finance costs. This is the measure reported NEEREAFTE L
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

Other information Hiaasr

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Amounts included in the measure of  stE D 5E% T

BE-_Z—NF+-A=+—HLFE

Electronic
LCD consumer
products

products Consolidated
)] 27

BRREm SHEEm )

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TE T THET THET

segment profits: e iEmes
Depreciation and amortisation Pree sy 635,456 123,497 758,953
Loss on disposal/write off of property, H& 5

plant and equipment 5 K 55 1 2 518 23,905 7,309 31,214
Allowance for doubtful debts FERBE 1,551 - 1,551

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Amounts included in the measure of 5+ &E 5 EEF

BE-F-=&+-A=+—AIL4E

Electronic
LCD consumer
products products  Consolidated

N7=B=NrL: ] ==
Remfe Eo

RN ESEE MR HEEM e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAET

segment profits: e esE -
Depreciation and amortisation e M 534,872 84,604 619,476
Loss on disposal/write off of property, & /#iss¥ns -

plant and equipment B K 55 1 2 B 18 79,534 872 80,406
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE A 508 - 508

Segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed as they are
not regularly reviewed by chief operating decision maker.
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- .

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEER®
Geographical information HEER
The following table sets out information about (i) the Group's TR () AEBIRE PR D RN
revenue from external customers by location of customers MR R K (i) AN EEIREEEHE D 8
and (ii) the Group's non-current assets by location of assets. HIERBEEMEE o

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
IhEEF R FREBEE

2014 2013 31.12.2014 31.12.2013
—B-OFE —T—=F
+=A +=H
—E-NF T =t+-—H =t+—*H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT F#ET T4
PRC H 16,401,624 14,531,466 7,702,113 5,848,361
South Korea [Ea) 2,720,132 4,060,878 = -
Hong Kong BB 535,245 475,738 100,712 34,250
Japan SN 526,291 423,454 - -
Europe B 470,154 516,067 - -
Others Hi 762,205 673,147 = -

21,415,651 20,680,750 7,802,825 5,882,611

Notes: PisE

(1) Regarding revenue arising from sales to external customers in 1) SARBEEN EEM RN R PR ERZEE M
Europe and others, no individual countries are material and hence = HEEAREREEEANDE WA ESY)
separate disclosure is not required. BYHEER -

(2) Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments and (2) ERHEETBIEAHEERE NEEREE
deferred tax assets. Eo

Information about major customers FEEFER

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years RIEEFEE N AN EEBEEEERBIE10%

contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as ZRPWERINT ¢

follows:

2014
—E—mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFETT
Customer A' ZER1 3,430,009 2,766,519
Customer B' BE LT N/A T8 f 2 2,870,229
Customer C' ®EFPA! N/A T8 f 2 2,318,058
1 Revenue from LCD products L KB R SRR e fh 2 W
2 Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total sales of 2 REBPZWm PR AEEBIHERE10%
the Group
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7. OTHER INCOME 7. HfkA

2014 2013
—E—MF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT

Other income includes: HER AR :
Dividends from available-for-sale investments A it &84 7 f% 2 19,628 -
Compensation income B EWA 8,023 1,402
Government grants (note 37) ERAT2EE (FFFE37) 19,944 62,706
Interest income FEUWA 39,932 26,916
Rental income MW A 10,291 9,140
Sundry income HMIFUL A 26,676 9,328
124,494 109,492

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HfhEs

2014 2013
—E—-ImF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Loss on fair value change SN R A EE
of foreign currency swap #a)EE 25,714 -
Foreign exchange gain on bank loan in SRITIRTTERZ
Australian dollars SINE Y 2R (23,576) -
2,138 -
Loss on fair value change of structured B INE SR T EE
foreign currency options EE)EE 8,257 -
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) SNERETIE (%) F 58 1,936 (79,317)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERIEHEIEREBEE
held for sale ZWEs - (312)
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, plant & /#iss¥mE « =&
and equipment By o 31,214 80,406
Allowance for doubtful debts RAREAE 1,551 508
Others Hih - 1,035
45,096 2,320
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9. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank and other borrowings BYRREFRNE
repayable within five years H &2 F

9. HMKEHR
2014 2013
—EF-mFE —T=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHE T FHIT
BZRITR
) 93,890 78,974

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

RETIR

Current tax:

10. FRIEHEX

2014 2013
—E—mF —F—=
HK$'000

T4 7T

HK$°000
FET

Hong Kong B 67,709 97,553
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ZERTIS R 247,466 269,964
Other jurisdictions Hih kR 4,026 560
319,201 368,077
Under(over)provision in prior years: BEFERETC GRERE) -

Hong Kong B (6,358) (4,052)
PRC # 10,983 (69,552)
4,625 (73,604)

Net withholding tax paid ENTEMMETHE 57,443 30,931
Deferred tax (note 29) IEEFIA (B2 29) (8,544) 21,043
Income tax expense for the year REEREHRAY 372,725 346,447

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Income tax arising in the PRC and other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in the PRC, one
of the Company's PRC subsidiaries was approved as Hi-Tech
Enterprise and entitled to 15% PRC enterprise income tax for
three years from 2012 to 2014. Another PRC subsidiary of
the Company has also been classified as Hi-Tech Enterprise
with effect from 1 January 2012 for three years but the
approval was not obtained until May 2013. Accordingly, PRC
Enterprise Income Tax was provided at 25% for this
subsidiary for the year ended 31 December 2012. As a result,
an overprovision of income tax in respect of the year ended
31 December 2012 of approximately HK$68,084,000 was
recognised in prior period.

BEBMNER M EFE NG EREEF
BB E165%:HHE -

PR B R Bt RLA M [ A 2 PR S B iR AR A
ALEHER ZBRITHEGE -

RIBFBIEBERERER - AAR]—EHE
MEBAREEASMEMNEE A2
— TR R NFE=FHAE15% 2P
BHEEMSHE - KRS —HFENBA
RMEDBEASNEMNE BT —=F
—A—HRAEH=-F HEE=-_ZT—=FHh
BltmABREERI Al 2%
——HF+-AZ+—BLFE  ARRIKRH
L25% BILHB A BB EP R EMREH -
W E—HMBEREE T -+ A
T+ HIEFEZHSHBEEGBLD
68,084,00078 7T °
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0. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT
Law of PRC"”) and the Detailed Implementation Rules,
distribution of the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
since 1 January 2008 to holding companies incorporated in
Hong Kong is subject to PRC withholding tax at the applicable
tax rate of 5%.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

10. FR8BiBAZ (&)

REFECEMABTOE(HBEEEMAER
&J)& e iRPIAR] - BT NF— H—

AR E B M AL ZE R A R Ik
EPlMﬂ%’ATﬁﬁﬂXZmﬂ/A&B%Z R
RN BRI -

RERZFIEHFASE
A& FI 2 # R0 -

EHRERZH

2014 AONIC]
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Profit before tax FLADE A 1,622,001 2,114,714
Tax at the average income tax rate TSR R 15.60%
of 156.60% (2013: 15.39%) (ZZ—=%F : 15.39% ) ;&% 253,098 325,427
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR S B2 B &
for tax purpose 58,747 36,147
Tax effect of income not taxable for BANFRUMA 2 s 2
tax purpose (5,511) (2,117)
(Over)underprovision in respect of prior years @1 GEBEERE) BET T 4,625 (73,604)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERTAIGE 1B 7 T IS s & 3,481 3,066
Tax effect of dividends AEEEREZREZ
from available-for-sale investments MiGsse 3,926 -
Underprovision of withholding tax FEIMTE A RTEINHEETE
in respect of PRC subsidiaries 28,598 25,073
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings R E AT AR D IR EF
of PRC subsidiaries ZFBHIFL 20,996 29,121
Others Hi 4,765 3,334
Income tax expense for the year RNEEREHRAY 372,725 346,447

Note: The average income tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2014
and 2013 represents the weighted average tax rate of the
operations in different jurisdictions on the basis of the relevant
amounts of profit before taxation and the relevant rate for the year.
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A L\ ¢

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. AFEHEF

2014 AONIC]
—E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHIT
Profit for the year has been arrived REFEZRATIARIA T IB%
at after charging: EB:
Auditor’s remuneration % SN € 3,480 3,480
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses &R AR 2 FEHK A 16,172,905 14,675,659
Research and development costs recognised ¥R AR X 7 A EE AL AN
as an expense 803,121 782,402
Depreciation and amortisation on: AN EIB 2 EREH -
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEKE 758,811 619,334
Technical know-how FAlTE M3 142 142
758,953 619,476
Operating lease rental in respect HEMEzEEHOEe
of rented premises 8,998 9,318
Release of prepaid lease payments FEBRIB T EFRIA 4,688 4,102
Staff costs, inclusive of directors’ BTN BHEEFEN -
remuneration:
Salaries and other benefits e MEMBEF 1,840,205 1,456,949
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R RE FET 245X 188,557 136,488

2,028,762 1,693,437
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERTHERZNE
REMUNERATION
Lam Wong Li
Wai Wah Pong Cheung Jian
(Chairman Chun, Tat Hua
and James Sang (Production Chung Ip Cho
Managing  (Executive (Marketing Managing Kam Ting, Heung
Director) Director) Director) Director) Kwong Spencer Kai Sing
wEE REE 354
(€:93 R (THER (£ES
ESELE) (BTESD) ¥3) #3848 Bt |2 BB Fek]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT THT FHL Fi#T FEL HIT BT
2014 —E-mE
Directors' fees: EEHE
Executive T - - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive B IERIT - - - - 264 132 132 528
Other emoluments paid to the YHTHTES L
executive directors: HibBie :
Salaries and other benefits Fe RAMER 3523 1,916 2,482 1,136 - - - 9,057
Performance related incentive EEERN L
payments (note) %8 (M) 3,412 1,716 2,400 377 - = = 7,905
Contributions to retirement benefit RIRERIFHEMER
scheme 34 34 34 - - - - 102
6,969 3,666 4916 1513 264 132 132 17,592
2013 —3-=%
Directors’ fees: Ok
Executive 1T - - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive B IEHIT - - - - 264 132 132 528
Other emoluments paid to the X FHTESL
executive directors: Afoe -
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 3,400 1,799 2,310 1,142 - - - 8,651
Performance related incentive HEERNL
payments (note) 4 (M) 9,394 3,398 4,160 572 - - - 17,524
Contributions to retirement RRERE B
benefit scheme 30 30 30 7 - - - 97
12,824 5,227 6,500 1,721 264 132 132 26,800
Note: The performance related incentive payments are based on the P : HEERN RS IRBHE_T—UFRZ
remuneration approved by the remuneration committee for the T—=F+-A=+—RALFEFHZESH
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. HEZHEERE -
Mr. Lam Wai Wah is also the Chief Executive of the Company MWEELEMABERRARITHRAEE - B EX
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for HEE e B EREATTIRAHFRMHRS
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. 2 o
Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors waived (EE-OFER T —=FF+_A=1—
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2014 AIEFE - SETBEHESEREZESHRER
and 2013. HUERIE S o
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13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2013: three) were directors and the chief
executive of the Company whose emoluments are set out in
note 12 above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2013:
two) individuals were as follows:

13. BEME

AEEBRERESTMALTH  =R(ZF
—=F  ZR)BARBZEERITREH, -
EB e BEn B 12 Ema (=
T—=F WEB)ALTZHEHT :

2014 2013

—F-mE T =F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT
|

Salaries and other benefits Fre kEMmEF 3,336 3,222

Performance related incentive payments EEEHR B 3,543 3,893

Contributions to retirement benefit scheme R {RIEFIET 21 2k 31 15

6,910 7,130

Their emoluments were within the following bands: EBEEMNESZEBNT -

2014
—E—mF
Number of

AONRC]
=%
Number of
employees

EE2E

employees

EEHE

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T 2 2,500,000/5 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 2= 3,000,000/5 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 7% 7T = 5,000,000 /5 7T 1 1
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14. DIVIDENDS 14. K2
2014 2013
—EF-mFE —FT-=F
HK$'000

HK$'000
TR TAT

REZERBDIKZIE -

Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:

2014 Interim dividend of 10 HK cents (2013 Z—Z— M HIK S AL
Interim dividend of 7 HK cents) per share HRE10BW(ZE—=

FRERRR B A e 7B 290,912 200,047
2013 Final dividend of 12 HK cents (2012 “E-ZFREAKE
final dividend of 5 HK cents) per share BER12BMW(ZE——F
REARE B &M 58 349,516 140,624
640,428 340,671

The 2014 interim dividend in aggregate of 10 HK cents per
share amounting to approximately HK$290,912,000 of which,
HK$58,295,000 and HK$145,404,000 were paid in September
and December 2014 and HK$87,213,000 were payable in
2015 to shareholders on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on 9 June 2014, 8
September 2014 and 3 December 2014, based on
2,914,753,398, 2,908,088,398 and 2,907,099,398 ordinary
shares in issue respectively.

The final dividend of 5 HK cents per share based on
2,907,099,398 ordinary shares amounting to approximately
HK$145,355,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: final dividend of 12 HK cents per share based on
2,919,593,398 ordinary shares, in respect of the year ended
31 December 2013) has been proposed by the directors and
is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

84 > Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2014

AR A DB E %172,914,753,398 J -
2,908,088,398 i% X 2,907,099,398 fi% & 3@ A%
HFE AR —ZE-MEANANB s —Z2—
FAANAR-E—NF+-A=ZHE%ER
SECE RPN 3SR v = g
T FFREREAETRI10EB - &5
#9 /290,912,000 7T * & 7 58,295,000 %
JC ]2 145,404,000 TER = —WHF LA
M+ AIRS - 187,213,000/ T BIR ==
—RFER -

BEEDEHI%2,907,099,398% Ei@ATAHE
REBE-_ZT—NF+-A=+—HItFE
ZREBEBRBEBRENL O A
145,355,000/ 7T( — & — = F£: &
2,919,693398 Kk E MBI HEHE_T—=
F+—A=Z+—ALEFEZRBRESRI12
L) MEEERENEERRBF RS L
ek o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M B R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE_—T-NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. SREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is FIRERN LRSS RBRTEE 5| &gt E

based on the following data:
Earnings 27

2014 2013
—g-mE  —T—=

HK$"000 HK$'000
FTET TAT

Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted Fi AT & G IR E A K&

earnings per share BERF 2 BT
(Profit for the year attributable to owners (RARHER A
of the Company) JEAE AR M) 1,118,369 1,619,990
Number of shares RAEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares F LAzt EEIER R EER TN 2

for the purposes of basic and diluted B AT INAE T 8L

earnings per share 2,911,512 2,820,783
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the HEEREARETF 2 EmARniEEEEe iR
purpose of basic earnings per share has been adjusted for the RERZRHEDEL T -

share repurchase during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there was no HRSRE R WEE AEEDRTE B -
significant potential ordinary shares outstanding at the end of WA mFNEGRIBERA c ARFIRN_EZE
the reporting date. The share option scheme adopted by the —HF+- A+ - HEM T ERESTE DR
Company on 22 December 2003 expired on 21 December —E—=—#+-A—+—HE®H TREH
2013 and all the then outstanding share options granted HE  BERETZIETREERDEHER
under the share option scheme lapsed on the expiry date. RITE 7 BEISRED Soik o
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BMERZE
Leasehold Furniture, Properties
landand fixtures and Plant and Motor under
buildings  equipment machinery vehicles development
HELth B
kEF RERRE BEREES RE  BERNE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL THL TEr TAT AL
COST KA
At 1 January 2013 RZZ—=F
—-A-A 1,058,621 611,788 6,550,608 32,718 364,148 8,617,783
Currency realignment FHRE 26,760 16,607 182,994 516 7,669 234,546
Additions NE 24,494 111,995 1,020,992 9,196 31,991 1,198,668
Disposals/write off E/ M - (130) (125,836) (880) - (126,846)
Transfers AR 252,747 - - - (252,747) -
At 31 December 2013 W_Z-=F
+-A=+-H 1,362,522 740,260 7,628,758 41,550 151,061 9,924,151
Currency realignment ERRR (23,394) (16,125) (180,665) (484) (6,551) (227,219)
Additions "E - 348,072 1,695,608 5,235 147,056 2,195,971
Disposalsfwrite off L& /s (11) (123) (142,812) (8.215) - (151,161)
Transfers R 72,063 - - - (72,083) -
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF
+-A=1-H 1,411,180 1,072,084 9,000,889 38,086 219503 11,741,742
DEPRECIATION AND RERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=F-A—H 228,620 364,120 3,104,896 27,548 - 3,725,184
Currency realignment SRRAR 4194 9,656 92,162 352 - 106,364
Provided for the year FERE 34,507 36,473 544,041 4313 - 619,334
Eliminated on HE/MHH
disposals/write off - (38) (43,138) (848) - (44,024)
At 31 December 2013 W_E-=F
+-A=+-H 267,321 410,21 3,697,961 31,365 - 4,406,858
Currency realignment ERRR 3,996) (8,322) (81,332) (324) - (93,974)
Provided for the year FEREE 35,476 57,701 661,359 4,275 - 758,811
Eliminated on HE /s
disposalsfwrite off (4) (50) (103,331) (7,166) - (110,551)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-M4F
+-A=+-H 298,797 459,540 4,174,657 28,150 - 4,961,144
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—M4F
+-A=1-H 1,112,383 612,544 4,826,232 9,936 219,503 6,780,598
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+ZA=+-H 1,095,201 330,049 3,930,797 10,185 151,061 5,517,293
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BERRE @
(continued)
Notes: FiEE -
(a) The cost of leasehold land and buildings is depreciated over forty (a) HHE L NEF Z BB 4805 AN+ FF H
years or the terms of the respective leases, whichever is the SEAMEFH(UAREEAE)TE -

shorter, using the straight-line method.

The other items of property, plant and equipment, other than Hi¥E  HELREEBZER (BREDYE
properties under development, are depreciated on a reducing SN AR RUE - AT R ETE -
balance method at the following rates per annum:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 20% B KB REE 10% £ 20%

Plant and machinery 11% to 15% B R 1% £ 15%

Motor vehicles 25% t0 30% qE 25% £ 30%
(b) The carrying value of the Group's property interests shown above (b) P AREEYERER ERERE

comprises:

2014
—g-mF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FH TR

Leasehold properties in Hong Kong held under RIEFHAOEFTEFE 2

medium-term leases HEYE 15,474 16,013
Properties in the PRC held RIEFERNEREIZEZ
under medium-term leases mE 1,316,412 1,230,249
1,331,886 1,246,262
17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. BHERE
2014 2013
—EF-mFE  —FT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FETT
The Group's prepaid lease payments AEBEMNHEREBRE
comprise:
Land use rights in the PRC held REPHRABEOEFERFE 2
under medium-term leases 4 3h {5 PR A 152,068 158,659
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLEFRB O HTOT ¢
Non-current asset IERBEE 147,966 154,498
Current asset MEVEE 4,102 4,161

152,068 158,659
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. ML EE
Technical
know-how
H TS A
HK$'000
FHIT
COST Jo#:N
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F—H—H RZ2—=F
31 December 2014 +ZA=+—AKR=-ZT—NHF
+=—A=+—8 23,230
AMORTISATION B
At 1 January 2013 R-—E—=F—H—H 22,897
Provided for the year FEEE 142
At 31 December 2013 N_E—=%F+_A=+—H 23,039
Provided for the year FEEAE 142
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WF+_HA=+—H 23,181
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2014 R-_E—NF+_A=+—H 49
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+_-A=+—H 191
Technical know-how are amortised on a straight-line basis BT E NS AE S S - EiHE AMm
over 4 years. Expenses incurred in the registration of Fo  RFEEEAMES ZBE XN WKzEFRF
trademarks during the year are charged to income statement. kK -
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. REEE N TR
2014 2013
—E—mEF

HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T
Cost of investment in an associate — unlisted R B & A TR AR — JE L 750,600 153,480

Share of profits and other PS5 ) N B 2 EUA
comprehensive income (15,757) -
734,843 153,480

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

AEBERHFERROB L RAFBOT

Principal Proportion of
Form of Place of place of Class of ownership interest
Name of entity entity registration operation  shares held by the Group  Principal activities

FEEX FEEFRZ

BEELR BERA  EMgE bR B4 &5 FAERSLA  EEXRE
2014 2013

“E-ME —T—=F

. _________________________________________|
Truly HZ Incorporated  PRC PRC Registered 53% 53% Development and production
EHEM BRI av 3 F capital of semiconductor products

i E A REREEFLSRER

HeE : REBEMEMEBEIZME - NMEHEESD

Note: According to the Articles of Association of Truly HZ, shareholders’

meeting cannot be held without the presence of either one of the
other two shareholders. The directors of the Company consider
that the Group does not have control but only significant influence
over Truly HZ under such a term because any resolutions to be
passed in shareholders’ meetings shall have the consent from
either one of the other shareholders demonstrated by their action
of being present in the meetings. Truly HZ is therefore classified as
an associate of the Group.

On 11 November 2014, EFFERERAF ("EFFEEL"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
capital increase agreement with the other two shareholders, being
original parties to the shareholders agreement, to increase the
registered capital of the associate. Pursuant to the capital increase
agreement, {= ¥ & 52 and the other two shareholders agreed to
increase the registered capital of the associate from RMB
1,132,000,000 to RMB 2,000,000,000.

BERERER —RRENERTRITRRAE -
RAREFAREZGRT  AEEHENE
NI EIEHIRE - EEERTZESN  RERRK
RAE BB RERBCHBBRET—H
REFEBRRTAR - At EFBMNDE
RAKEBERT -

WZZE-—MF+—A+—H AaRzBEE:
AMBRARAEMNFERERAR(EH+E
B EEMREER(ARRBRZRETN
TR E W Z - LB MEE AR 2 i E
o RBBEGFE  EAHVERIEMRER
RABKAERAZAMEARAAARK
1,132,000,000 7T 4 11 Z A 5 2,000,000,000
T o
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 19.

Summarised financial information of the associate
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

REE QR ()

BEQATNMBENEE

BRAARSERZATNYBENBEZESIM
T e R THMBERNBBERREBM RS
R PR bIEE S R B IE MR AR S o

BERRDRAERGHEARNLEFRA M
S E YN

Truly HZ ERIEM
2014 2013
—EF-mFE  —FT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FHET
Current assets mBEE 483,823 289,597
Non-current assets ERBNE E 1,187,022 55
Current liabilities ey (284,349) (67)
Loss for the year KEEEIE (33,022) -
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ ZREEH M2 EUA 3,292 -
Total comprehensive expense for the year AN/ 2 MG 4258 (29,730) -

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

I RS E R AR S B R AR
e NRIMRRNEREESRNT

2014 2013

—2-NF —E—=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FER T4

Net assets of Truly HZ ERBMEEFE 1,386,496 289,585
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest x4 B/ FIZE M &Y

in Truly HZ Fir B Rz bL 17 53% 53%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REBEREFEIMNE

in Truly HZ AR E 734,843 153,480
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

20. JEHEERE

2014 AONIC]
—g-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHIT
Equity shares listed in Taiwan (note a) RaEEmzEmiRm (Wita) 133,500 178,662
Unlisted equity shares, at cost (note b) JE kR (GRRRAE)
(M¥zEb) 10,500 10,500
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERIREEE (10,500) (10,500)
Total 1ExE 133,500 178,662
Notes: M5k
(a) The investments represent equity interests in companies (a) ZEREENE BT A B AR A
incorporated in Taiwan with their registered shares listed on the W ZERNANRNESEEFISH LT -
Taiwan Stock Exchange, which are stated at fair value. The fair WIRAFBESEE - FHRAZLENAEEE
value of listed equity securities is determined based on quoted RN BB SR GFFAROTHREABETE -
market bid price available from the relevant stock exchange. During HE-_Z—NE+-_A=1+—HILEE O
the year ended 31 December 2014, fair value loss of RAFEEREEABS,062,0008 (2 —=
HK$58,052,000 (2013: fair value gain of HK$115,008,000) has been F  QFEEUKE 115,008,000%7T)
recognised.
(b)  The investments represent the unlisted equity shares issued by (b) ZREEFRHARATERITOIELHES

private entities in Japan. The investments are stated at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The directors had
assessed the future cash flows expected to be generated and an
impairment loss was fully provided against the cost in prior years.

Bty o BREREBEAFEEZ G BERA -
AAREERR/ERFEETENEFE &
BEAERREALR -RBEFE  EFEK
AEBEEREEZARESRE - ARHARA
ERHEREBERE -
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21. INVENTORIES 21. &
2014 AONIC]
—E—MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHIT
Raw materials R 544,693 497,702
Work in progress TR 239,947 283,111
Finished goods RUAK 726,706 708,337
1,511,346 1,489,150

22. LOAN RECEIVABLE

REEKE
B RS R

Interest-free loan receivable b

Less: allowance for loan receivable

22. EIWER

2014 2013
—ZT-NF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
24,762 24,762
(24,762) (24,762)

The directors have assessed the expected future cash flows
to be generated and allowance for loan receivable was fully
provided against the carrying amount as at 31 December
2014 and 2013.

RZE—NFR_FT—=ZFF+-_A=+—
B EXC&TEBHBEEZ RRRER
£ AEEEEREHEEWEREE -

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EWERIE K HAibEUNFIE
2014 2013
—F-mE  —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TABTT
Trade and bills receivables FE UG BRTE K7 FE W Z 45 5,056,572 5,392,075
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o REREME (8,212) (7,016)
5,048,360 5,385,059
Other receivables, deposits and prepayment H b EWFRIE - 1&& M FE I8 529,852 523,330
Total trade and other receivables JFE AR IE K B b B R IR 4B BE 5,578,212 5,908,389

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days
to its trade customers. Included in trade and bills receivables
are bills receivables with the carrying amount of
HK$498,790,000 (2013: HK$747,573,000). The amounts are
unsecured, interest free and with a maturity period ranging
from 30 to 90 days.
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| LA L)
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)  23. FEUR BRI K2 H fth FE UK 7R I8 (42)
At i MRROE PO 2 4 LA R I T B

413,391,000/8 (= F— =4 : 340,368,000
BIL) °

Included in the other receivables is other PRC tax recoverable
of HK$413,391,000 (2013: HK$340,368,000).

AEBNFHEEERNEEBEININZER
SMEZ EURTA K RSB T -

The Group's trade and bills receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

2014
—E-ms
HK$'000
FH

2013
—T—=F
HK$'000
T

Denominated in HK dollars LA ITTEHE 21,582 37,371
Denominated in Euro AR TEHE 15,664 13,511

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, net of the allowance for doubtful debts at
the reporting date:

W B 2 R T M R (3 805 B
KIRBEABL2F)) RREEE BRI
mT

2014
“E-mE

Trade Bills Trade
receivables  receivables Total receivables receivables Total
EkEE EHEE &t YR RYUZE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRr  TAR  TRR  TER TR T
Within 60 days 60 HA 3,268,464 422,552 3,691,016 3,363,216 552,743 3,915,959
6110 90 days 61290H 813,008 39,400 852,408 889,367 84,349 973,716
More than 90 days BB H 468,098 36,838 504,936 384,903 110,481 495,384
4,549,570 498,790 5,048,360 4,637,486 747573 5,385,059

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit
rating limits for each customer. Limits attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. 82% (2013: 82%) of the trade
receivables are neither past due nor impaired having
settlement subsequent to the reporting date and with no past
history of defaults in payment.

REMTEHELA  AEESTHEER
FZZEEEZRBESEP 2 EEFLR
BB TREFZEERESFEE X R
REBHEER Q2%(ZFT—=F :82%)
ZEWEESRBIERE BBEYER
RECEE °
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. FEURBRIE % E b FE U FRIE (8)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$815,608,000 (2013:
HK$819,157,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade and bills receivables which are past
due but not impaired

AEBZREREELZHMANBREAR
[ {H /4815,608,000/8 jt( — & — = £ :
819,157,000/ 7T) 2 FEMBRFK + 2 ZEFIAR
WEADBH  HAREEEERTEERKN
BE)HZEBNEAIKRE - Bt AL EW
BEHREREERE AEETELZSE
BRI o

ERHERBREZEBERERERRERS
el

2014 2013

—EF-mFE  —F=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Within 60 days 60BN 656,035 630,306
61 to 90 days 612 90H 127,087 77,266
More than 90 days @m0 H 32,486 111,585
Total pak 815,608 819,157

In determining the recoverability of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables, the Group consider any change in
credit quality of the debtors from the date of credit was
initially granted up to the reporting date. Accordingly, the
directors believe that there is no further credit provision
required in excess of the allowance already made.

An allowance was provided on doubtful debts due from trade
and other receivables and the movement are as follows:

A 7E FE R AR TR I FE M R 1 e EL A FE M 5ROR
Z AW EIER - AREEEE A KN LIE
EZRREREHLBRKERZEEEEREN
ERE - Bt - EERRERE—FEH
HACDFREZEERE -

2 kU B B T L OB 2 R R AR 2T
R AHEBMT

2014 AONRC]
—F-mFE  =ZT=

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#ET FHETT

Balance at beginning of the year FU) s 7,016 6,531

Impairment losses recognised EREYGIERER 2 REBE

on receivables 1,551 508
Amounts written off as uncollectible HsE AT AU 2 FRIE (355) (23)
Balance at end of the year FIREER 8,212 7,016
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24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

5

24, RITHEEFERBES

2014 2013
—ZE-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&T T

Cash on hand and in bank Be MIRTTER 2,034,460 2,182,762

Short term bank deposits ROHBIRTTIE AR 1,627,686 622,952
Bank deposits with original maturity date REBARABA=M®AZ

more than 3 months RITER 1,564 -

3,663,710 2,805,714

The Group's bank balances and deposits that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

Japanese Yen

HK$'000
Fi#E

HE BT

AEBNFHEEERNEEREININZER
B Z SRITHETF AT AR# PN T

HK$ us$
xr
HK$'000

TET

RMB
ARH
HK$'000
THAT

HK$'000
THAT

As at 31 December 2014 R-EBE—WE+—-A

=+—H 67,485 183,803 85,019 1,630,306
As at 31 December 2013 R-_EBE—=%+—_A4

=+—~ 31,536 111,308 70,877 496,161

Bank deposits and bank balances carry interest at fixed and
variable rates respectively which ranged from 0.01% to 3%
(2013: 0.01% to 3%) per annum.

Short term bank deposits include guarantee fund of
HK$36,486,000 (2013: Nil) to secure bills payables and are
therefore classified as current assets. The guarantee fund
carry fixed interest rate of 2.85% per annum. The guarantee
fund will be released upon settlement of bills payables.

25. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Leasehold properties in the PRC held under
medium-term leases

ZHEEME

RITERRBITEEFDRIEN F0.01%E3%
(ZE—Z=F:001% E3%) BT R EH
FHMERFE -

5 HASR1TIF B IR IR 75 £36,486,00078 L (=
T—=F: \)UERENEE  EALS
HARBEE - RESUABETEFEFE2.85%
B RECENENERLEERSHER

25. FEFHEFRRBEE

2014
—E-mE

2013
—ZF—=

HK$'000

FETT

HK$’000
FET

REDHENHETEFE

2,524 2,580
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25.

26.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

(continued)

The directors of the Company approved the disposal of
certain properties which were previously developed as staff
quarters. Leasehold properties with a carrying amount of
HK$63,411,000 had been reclassified from prepaid lease
payment and properties, plant and equipment in prior years,
of which HK$212,000 was sold in 2013 for consideration of
HK$524,000. The gain on disposal of approximately
HK$312,000 was recognised in profit for the year ended 31
December 2013. No leasehold properties was sold during the
year. The directors expect the remaining leasehold properties
will be sold in the coming year.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

25. BELEFRRBEE @

RAREEHAHENTRRIEEIESY
ETWE-RBEFE FEAEA
63,411,000 L2 HEME BB EFIA
UEME BMEREBEET»E Hh
2120008 TR -_ZE—=FHE REA
524,000 T HE T — =9+ _ A
=+—HIEFE HEWKEL312,00087T
EERAN -  FRATELNEHREYE - &
EEHRHB THEMEBRRERE -

FEAS BRIE K EL b FE A FRIR

RBERRIZEZBRZDN 2 BNRIERE
NERZREDHWT

26.

2014
—g-QF
Trade Bills Trade

Payables payables Total Payables Payables Total

RS EREE fi JAREE ARES: as
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TARL THET THL TEL THT
Within 60 days 60 B 3,071,867 741,485 3,813,352 2,715,836 469,943 3,185,779
61to 90 days 61290H 512,939 112,123 625,062 599,873 39,777 639,650
More than 90 days BB A 341,545 - 341,545 377,666 - 377,666
3,926,351 853,608 4,779,959 3,693,375 509,720 4,203,095

The credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 60 to
90 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
time frame.

Included in other payables are sales deposit received with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$244,152,000 (2013:
HK$115,681,000), accruals of operating expenses with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$356,321,000 (2013:
HK$310,480,000), payables for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment with aggregate amount of
HK$73,301,000 (2013: HK$56,253,000), government grants
of HK$16,365,000 (2013: HK$18,869,000) and dividend
payable of HK$88,357,000 (2013: HK$59,349,000).
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H b fE A B B 15 B AR E B & 244,152,000
B (ZFE—=4 :115681,000/8T) 22
WK &S « A8RME B 4 356,321,000 7T
—EFE— =4 :310,480,000/8 T ) 7 fEFT &
BEM - %5 A573,301,0008 T (ZE—=
F 1 56,253,000 70) Z MNEME - B 5
R 2 FETEE - 16,365,000 L (==
— = £ : 18,869,000 7T ) < BT 86 &
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The Group's trade and bills payables that are denominated in

currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant

group entities are set out below:

26. ERRERAEMEMSTRE @)

AEENAHREEEBNEERAINZEE
B EAERERENREHINDT

2014 2013

—EF-NFE —FT=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHxT FHETT

Denominated in HK dollars LABTTEHE 103,723 95,492

Denominated in Japanese Yen LAH EFHE 296,531 147,617
27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS, 27. RITREMEE  EIEHF

UNSECURED

2014 2013

—B-NOFE —T—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&xT T

Bank loans RITER 3,712,961 2,209,726

Bills discounted with recourse BERREZINRER 32,174 -

Trust receipt loans EEWIBEER 1,577,659 1,591,079

Other loans HuER 114,500 83,015

5,437,294 3,883,820

The Group's bank and other borrowings that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the

relevant group entities are set out below:

AEBNFHEEERIEEREININZER
FHEZ RITREMEEEHRTIAT

Denominated in HK dollars LB TTEHE 2,877,454 1,905,373
Denominated in Japanese Yen A HEFHE 109,227 70,161
Denominated in Australian dollars LUBTTEHE 166,424 -
Carrying amount repayable*: FEfTRREE * -
Within one year A—F R 4,568,555 2,949,189
More than one year, —FRERMEAN
but not exceeding two years 553,701 643,022
More than two vears, MFEZERAFR
but not exceeding five years 315,038 291,609
5,437,294 3,883,820
Less: Amount due within one year BN RBEEY 2 —FR
shown under current liabilities | pEisE £ (4,568,555) (2,949,189)
Amount due after one year shown under TIRSEREBBETZ —F1&
non-current liabilities B HRZRIE 868,739 934,631
* The amount due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out * BIEFRIBERBERER BEcBEERBE

in loan agreements.

B -
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27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS,
UNSECURED (continued)

All the Group’s borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR"), London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR"), the
People’s Bank of China’s benchmark rate or Bank Bill Swap

27. RITREMEE > EEF @)

AEEMBEEOREREER  BRBABR
TRZEHB(TEFERTRAERE]) - RBGR
TRZEFRE (MRBERITTRZERE D) - FEIA
RIBITEENXHIRITHSEN K ([RIT75F

Rate (“BBSW") plus certain basis points. Interest is repriced SZERER | INETFESSS - FEE=MEA
every three months and the range of effective interest rates BEF BRMNEZFLENF094%ZE
isat 0.94% t0 6.15% (2013: 0.96% to 6.15%) per annum. 6.15% T——E 1 0.96% £6.15%) °
28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 8. fTEEmI A
2014 2013
—F-mFE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Foreign currency swap SN $ HA 26,821 -
Structured foreign currency options “EE N B R 6,641 -
33,462 -

(i) Foreign currency swap

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
entered into a cross currency swap contract under
which the Group will pay a notional amount of Australian
dollar (“AUD") 26,225,000 and will receive a notional
amount of HK$190,000,000. The Group will pay interest
at HIBOR plus 1.75% and receive interest at BBSW
plus 0.85% at each month. The Group will then pay
HK$23,750,000 and receive AUD3,278,125 by eight
installments. The contract will expire on 10 July 2017.
The net loss on change in fair value amounting to
HK$25,714,000 has been recognised in profit or loss
that are included in “Other gains and losses”

(i) Structured foreign currency options

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
entered into a structured foreign currency options
contract with a bank to hedge against the appreciation
of Japanese Yen (“JPY") against United States dollars
("US dollars”) for an agreed period of time. The Group
and the bank will settle on a gross basis with reference
to the difference between the spot rate of JPY against
US dollars and the strike price on the monthly
settlement date as per the contract. These options
include a knock-out provision whereby the contract will
automatically be terminated in accordance with the
terms set out in the contract.
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presenting in the consolidated statements
of financial position, the following is the analysis of the
deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

5

29. EEBIREE AfE

BNEEFBERAKRT 2] RPBE2HM
B OERBIBEGOTAOT

2014 2013

—E—mE —E—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TABTT

Deferred tax liabilities EEFEAE 48,583 57,487
Deferred tax assets BT TEE E (8,867) (9,227)
39,716 48,260

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

EAFEBEFEAERNEERTEHRA

recognised and movements thereon during the current and BEEE) MEZHNT -
prior years:
Allowance
for
Accelerated receivables  Undistributed
tax and profits of PRC
depreciation inventories subsidiaries Total
niE ERFIER Y A R
BENE rERE A7 B ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THT THT
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—F—H 18,883 (9,033) 17,367 27,217
Reversal of deferred tax liability 5 Fl4 & EEEFIE
upon distribution of profits afE - - (5,858) (5,858)
(Credit) charge to profitor loss ~ MEEEZH (HH)
for the year X8 (2,026) (194) 29,121 26,901
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%+_AH
=1+—H 16,857 (9,227) 40,630 48,260
Reversal of deferred tax liability 7&K %% B BT 18
upon distribution of profits B - - (28,845) (28,845)
(Credit) charge to profitor loss ~ REE BT (%)
for the year Y8 (1,055) 360 20,996 20,301
At 31 December 2014 RZE-WFE+_H
=1+—A 15,802 (8,867) 32,781 39,716

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$101,510,000 (2013: HK$89,997,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Unrecognised tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely except for
HK$30,900,000 (2013: HK$25,367,000) in the tax jurisdiction
of the PRC which may be carried forward for 5 years.

-=

RBRERR AEBM2AHAHRB
& #101,510,000%8 (= & — = F:
89,997,000 7T.) F] A EE SR BT - A
RRBEEFT AR I H TR - B I iz %
FIEERELERBEE - RERZRFER
AR BRI - B R BRI S R AR R Bk ]
4588 7 4F 2 30,900,000 L ( —E— =4 :
25,367,000 L) b ©
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 29. EEXEFRIBEE &SF#®)

(continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on BEFRRCEMRSER 2 BT N\E
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC —A— B B BKE QB Z G A
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation FTE R M A% SZBBUANTEINTS - fE4R A BT 3R
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial K WERFBENEAR Z 28T
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to B Z %81,799,315,0008 o ( =T — = F
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to 1,125,945,000/8 70 ) {EHIRER BB - R
HK$1,799,315,000 (2013: HK$1,125,945,000) as the Group is R 2 7N B A s /15 4 B o] F i = FE 0 B
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary M AR Be SR BRI E % o

differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A&
Number of
ordinary shares
EZEREE
at HK$0.02 Share
per share capital
REK0.02%E T (&
HK$'000
TR
Authorised: ETE
Balance at 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 W ZZE—=%F—H—H -
and 31 December 2014 —E—=F+ZA=1+—Hk
ZE-MF+=A=+—H
2R 5,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
Balance at 1 January 2013 RNZEBE-—Z=ZF—F—Bz&#% 2,764,773,398 55,295
Exercise of share options 1TERRA I 178,298,000 3,566
Shares repurchased and cancelled EEEREFHERN (23,478,000) (469)
Balance at 31 December 2013 RZEBE—=F+=-A=1+—8
2 R 2,919,593,398 58,392
Shares repurchased and cancelled BEREREFHERR (12,494,000) (250)
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZEBE-—MFE+=-A=1+—8
P 1 2,907,099,398 58,142

Details of the exercise of share options are set out in note 35.
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 30. WA (#)

FR - ARBE BB ABLEEAS KD

During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares

through The Stock Exchange as follows: T

No. of ordinary Aggregate

Month of shares of Price per share consideration
repurchase HK$0.02 each Highest Lowest paid

BREE
0.02 T2 BRER

L AEPERV) EERHE 4] BIE e ERE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000

BT P& TT TAT

January — A 4,384,000 4.62 413 19,046
February — A 456,000 4.18 4.18 1,911
May 7 A 3,536,000 4.74 4.29 16,257
August J/\H 3,118,000 4.20 418 13,076
September J1. A 1,000,000 4.42 4.40 4,410

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the
year.

IR AR TR BB [ B JE R 8

FR-MEARFMELAREE - hEXE
B{ERARA] LHES °

31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. EXEBER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the AEBHTERAEEUBRRASEANNETRE
Group will be able to continue as going concern while BERELE  RNERE(LEREERTE
maximising the return to shareholders through the BIRRE R AR
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which REBRHMEANEREBERFE(REMT27
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 27, net of cash and FiEREsEE SRR MASESHEER)
cash equivalents, and equity comprising issued share capital Mgk (BIEEBEITIRARGERE) AR -
and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure RNAREETHESHEARE EEZE
periodically. The directors consider the cost of capital and the BARKARBERIARE 2 R - WiEBx
risks associates with the capital, and will balance its overall IR B ~ BTN A, KB AR D A K&
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new EERITEETEHEBRERERE-
share issues of the Company and share buy-backs as well as
raising of bank borrowings.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from the RNEB R RIS —F AR -
prior year.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. €@IT A
a. Categories of financial instruments a. SEMIASE
2014 2013
—E-ImF =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT F&T
Financial assets TEEE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERRERGIE(BERER
and cash equivalents) HEEMAEER) 8,742,206 8,294,368
Available-for-sale investments I HERE 133,500 178,662
8,875,706 8,473,030
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost B R 10,373,385 8,605,422
Derivative financial instruments MESRIA 33,462 -
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. LREAMEEEEREE
policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include bank AEBETZSRT ABRKRRTET
balances and cash, trade and other receivables, K& - BURERTE & E b U RIE -
available-for-sale investments, trade and other payables, AHERERE  EAEREEREMES
bank and other borrowings and derivative financial FIE - RITREMEEUARITE SR
instruments. Details of these financial instruments are TH - ZEEMmITAEZFBRSEMN
disclosed in respective notes. FEEHREE o
The risks associated with these financial instruments FHzEem T AZRARREERZSE
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set BERAOBEHEN T - BEEETER
out below. The management manages and monitors MEERZEFER - AR EEE R
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are EHEEE BRI -

implemented in a timely and effective manner.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the financial
risks of changes in interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates and change in prices (see below).

(i)  Foreign currency risk
The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies which are
different from US dollars and Renminbi (“RMB"),
the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

The carrying amounts of foreign currency risk
arising from foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
reporting date are as follows:

32. €mMI A%
b. 2REAMESEEEREE )

T 5 B

REE 2 EE T EAT R KR IMNERE
XEPEoREARUAREREDER
(BT -

(i) SMEEE B
REBZETRHANERE
ZEINERABEHBARIIEE
BETRARE (AR A5
g o

RIER » UINEFHEZ BB E
EREBREEL ZINERRZ
FREEWNT

Liabilities Assets

& BE
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E—-mE = —E-mE —ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THIT FET T

Hong Kong dollar BIT 2,981,412 2,009,833 206,499 148,678
JPY H 406,498 229,047 67,485 31,536
Euro BT 8 - 15,665 13,511

- - 1,630,436 496,253

RMB AR
AUD BIT

166,424 - - -

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group's profit after taxation for the
year in response to reasonably possible change in
the functional currency i.e. US dollars to the
relevant currencies which the Group have
significant exposure at the reporting date. Since
Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US dollars under
the Linked Exchange Rate System, the
management does not expect significant foreign
currency exposure in relation to the exchange rate
fluctuation between Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars. The Group mainly exposes to foreign
currency risks other than US dollars.

BURE DT
TRETHNINEEE (A1XT)
AB|AKEREEHEASERNR

B MERLEEAFERBTR
BAATEEZ SRS - mRIR
i B B2 I =X ) B8 JT B SR T A
B EEEYTTRRLEARE
TCESE T IE KN B 2 BRSNS R
B o AEE T BEAZEITIAIND
2R
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. M TR

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

2014

b.

—s-mE

US dollar
strengthens

(weakens)
ETHE
(B21H)

JPY HIE 14%
(14%)

Euro BT 13%
(13%)

RMB AR 0.5%
(0.5%)

AUD BT 9%
(9%)

cREREEEEREEE)
i R ()
(i) ShEEmEBR (4E)
BRE DT (&)
2013
—T-=F
Increase US dollar Increase
(decrease) strengthens (decrease)
in profit (weakens) in profit
g bl ELAE St A A
(H2) (B2fE) ORA)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
39,575 23% 37,140
(39,575) (23%) (37,140)
(1,687) 4% (450)
1,687 (4%) 450
(6,807) 3% (12,541)
6,807 (3%) 12,541
12,298 N/ATEA NATEA
(12,298) N/A “~iEA N/A N3 A

As set out in Note 28, at the end of the reporting
period, the Group had outstanding foreign
currency swap and structured foreign currency
options which also expose the Group to currency
fluctuation risks.

For the foreign currency swap outstanding at 31
December 2014, if Hong Kong dollar was
strengthened against AUD by 9%, the post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would decrease by approximately HK$12,482,000,
if Hong Kong dollar was weakened against AUD
by 9%, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2014 would increase by approximately
HK$12,870,000.

For the structured foreign currency options
outstanding at 31 December 2014, if US dollars
was strengthened against JPY by 14%, the post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would decrease by approximately HK$4,906,000,
if US dollars was weakened against JPY by 14%,
the post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2014 would increase by approximately
HK$5,384,000.
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SN R B R -

BR—_ZT—NFE+_-_A=+—8
ZARFEIMNEIRE - WETH R
ﬁﬂ@g%’ %i:g—ﬂi
+—A=+—RUIEFEZKFE
i A Bl D 49 12,482,000 7% T
WETHBILRE%  B#EZ
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2 B B ot m R RIS oA
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the year end exposure does not

reflect the exposure during the year.

(ii)  Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank balances and variable-rate
bank and other borrowings (see notes 24 and 27
for details). The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
HIBOR and LIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong
Kong dollar denominated borrowings and the
fluctuation of BBSW arising from the Group's
AUD denominated borrowings. The management
considers the exposure to interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances is insignificant due to the
low interest rate. The Group currently does not
use any derivative contract to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, the management of
the Company will consider hedging significant

interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowing. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point
(2013: 100 basis point) increase or decrease is
used which represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2013:
100 basis point) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would decrease/increase by HK$45,401,000

(2013: decrease/increase by HK$32,430,000).

32. €I EH#»®)
b. ¢REAKREEEEREE &)

15 Lk (42)
(i) MR ()
BREDT ()

BEERS  BHRFRZEARK
BERMRAFERNZERE  BERED
A 5 [ A SMNE R B N AR ©

(i) FIZRE R
NEEBEAENFEEFER
% ZEBEEBRITERE
B - REENEAERSREF
RER - ZEBTIREBITET
MZBERITEEUREMESR
(FXBRMWE24K%27) 2B1TH
BHERES) - AEBZRERE
FIER R A AEB BT E
2B FEERREBRITE
EIRERBBETREREZE
&) MREAEBLUBITAHEZ
BE  BIXEZEEFRIETHLE
FIR 7 &) o ARTF R EKFE
SR AHERERBRTET
2R ERRBITTERKN - A&
35 B 3P A PRI STAE A HI LA
P EF KRR - A - AAF
ERBERETEREEYPE
RFERB

BRE DT

AN GBS D AT ThAR R Z B8R 1T
BEZFERERMET - 22
IRBRERREREF 2 EERE
mARKREMRER - KRR THER
1008 F(=ZZ—=4 : 10084F)
ZIEmsR L REERELF
o IR A BEEEN ZF
fly o

WMFIE EFH, TBK100% 7 (=
T—=F :100%F) MAAALE
thEEEHTE  KEFEREE
—E-MFE+-A=+—HIF
&2 B & E R AR A 1% m
45,401,000 T (ZF — =4 :
R 12 5032,430,000 4 7T) ©
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii) ~ Other price risks
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from investments in listed equity securities
classified under available-for-sale investments.

Price risk sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 15% (2013: 15%) higher/
lower, investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HK$20,025,000 (2013:
HK$26,799,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to perform an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group had concentration of credit risk as 18%
(2013: 23%) of total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest trade debtor, which is a company
located in the PRC with good reputation and repayment
history.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

With respect of credit risk arising from the loan
receivable and other receivables, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each receivable at the end of
each reporting period and allowance for loan receivable
and other receivable are made. The management of the
Company considers that the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from default of the loan receivable is limited
as the amount has been fully provided for. The Group
manages its credit risk by closely monitoring the other
receivables with and follow up action being taken to
recover the overdue receivables. Other receivables
consist of a large number of counterparties which do
not give rise to significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk
The Group's liquidity position is monitored closely by
the management of the Company.

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
its current and expected liquidity requirements regularly
and ensuring sufficient liquid cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from reputable financial
institutions to meet the Group's liquidity requirements
in the short and long term. The management of the
Company also monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents adequate to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The following table details the Group’'s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flow. To the extent that interest flows are floating rates,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

32. €mMI A%

b.

TREAREEREREEE)

EEEkRE (&)
HREFIOREEEEZRIT R
PESZEERBRBR

B E RN E M R RELE ZF
ERRME  ARERERERRE
) %5 FE MR TR 2 AT Ui [B] 2 2R Nt e U
B R E A EWGRIA 2 B o
AREEERSHNE 2B ETOA -
AEBAAE 2 ZSRRERBOE
EZEERRAR - AEEEBEY
ERTEAEGERAR  WRIRET
B LAWK (2] 78 H B I B SR o E At FE UK
RHEREZHRLEHBEREERRE
FIERZEFIT -

RBEEER
AEEZRBHESRABAARBEIE

RS -

REERBE S ARE - AEEEH
ERERKLEMRPEST R A
BREGRARZADRE NERESR
SEZEHMEBZRAGERE N
MEARENEMEERARDESS
Ko ARRERENGEBERERT
RZBAEMBASFEHBKF  UB
AEEZEEREES MEERSR
ERBzTE -

TRFAM2IAKETESRAE
ZRBANFY - ZRREAKERA]
REXRERZZFEHERBEZR
FRBVEREMBR - ZXBEFE
RAZBRERE - WHERERWTF
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EHRZMEEE -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

In addition, the following table details the Group's
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual net cash inflows and outflows
on derivative instruments that settle on a net basis, and
the undiscounted gross inflows and outflows on those
derivatives that require gross settlement. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities
are essential for an understanding of the timing of the
cash flows of derivatives.

32. €mMI A%

b.

TREAREEREREEE)

RBEEER(E)

SN - TREFFIAEEREITES R
TAMEZRBESDIT - TRIR
BRERFEAELE2TETAZ
AW ENBRSRARR T FEE - N
N ERANEREEZTETAZ R
PRAARREDREMRRE - XEE
MESBRTAZRBES DT IHIRE
/\%’JEIJHH Hims AR EEER
RERNIPAERERITETARS
MEZHEE+TSEE -

Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Oto3 4-6 7-12 Over undiscounted  amount at
interest rate months months months 3years  cashflows 31December
Rt+=A
ERH ARRE Sqr=1E
RBFE =2E=ER WEAER tEZ+=f@A —EmE MEZF BAZF s £4) ZIREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET FET TR TET TET
2014 —E-mE
Non-derivative instruments {745 T &
Trade and other payables FERRERELENTE - 4,936,091 - - - - - 4,936,091 4,936,091
Variable interest rate bank and Z 8 R{TIEE REMEE
other borrowings 1.94 3,711,088 145,808 391,391 576,141 697,253 - 5,521,681 5,437,294
8,647,179 145,808 391,391 576,141 697,253 - 10457,772 10,373,385
Derivatives — gross T4 — 2EEHE
settlement
Foreign currency swap SNE I H
— inflow — i 1,466 1,542 22,938 84,185 60,983 - 171,114 169,865
— outflow — (963) (1,013) (25,670) (98,358) (72,127) - (198,131) (196,686)
503 529 (2,732) (14,173) (11,144) - (27,017) (26,821)
Derivatives — gross i1 — 2BHE
settlement
Structured foreign currency A NEHHE
options
— inflow — A 20,444 20,444 6,815 - - - 47,703 45,922
— outflow — (23,400) (23,400) (7,800) = - = (54,600) (52,563)
(2,956) (2,956) (985) - - - (6,897) (6,641)
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. €E@MI A%
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. HEMEEEERBEE)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) BB L ER(E
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective 0to3 4-6 7-12 Over undiscounted amount at
interest rate months months months 3 years cash flows 31 December
®+=A
! =+-g
BA WEAEA LE+=fAA mE=F B ‘ 2 EEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T A% A% Tt a7 ; 7
2013 —T-=F
Non-derivative instruments %474 TE
Trade and other payables FEATRRIE R A MR - 4,621,602 - - - - - 4621,602 4,621,602
Variable interest rate bank FERTEEREMES
and other borrowings 223 2401382 274870 317,19 667881 297,830 - 3959050 3883820
7,022,984 274,870 317,196 667,881 297,830 - 8,580,761 8,505,422
c. Fair value measurements of financial c. TMIAEZAFEEFE
instruments
This note provides information about how the Group UM R EE AR S ENAEE TR
determines fair values of various financial assets and CREERECRHEBBEZATEEZE
financial liabilities. #o
(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial i) RBEEEUNFEEAEZLE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring BE&mEEREMEBEZIATE
basis (]
The Group's available-for-sale investments and RERERR - AEE 2 HE
derivative financial instruments are measured at ERERITESBMTANEAT
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The BEFE - TRAEHUNET
following table gives information about how the HEEMEENERBEZRAYF
fair values of these financial assets and financial B2E&ER -

liabilities are determined.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. €M I A
c. Fair value measurements of financial c. ERMIAZATEETE#E)
instruments (continued)

(i)  Fairvalue of the Group's financial assets and financial i) BEEEULNFEESIEZARE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring ERHEERESHEEZATE
basis (continued) B (&)

Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value Valuation techniques
financial liabilities 31 December 2014 hierarchy and key inputs
R-E-HmE+=R AVEE
LREE SRAE =t-HzAYEE BREE HEAEREERARE
Available-for-sale investments Assets — Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
AHHERE HK$133,500,000 E1R WEEMST 2 RE
BE—
133,500,000 7T
Foreign currency swap (Note 1) Liability — Level 2 Discounted cash flow method
HMERE (FfEE1) HK$26,821,000 E28 RemEMRE
aE—
26,821,00078 7T The key inputs are foreign exchange spot and

forward rates and interest rate curves.

IRBABBRINERE LRHF R AR R

R
Structured foreign Liability — Level 3 Monte Carlo Simulation Method
currency options (Note 2) HK$6,641,000 E3 SHRBEERE
EEEONE BE (F3E2) afE—

6,641,000/ 7T The key inputs are spot exchange rate on the
date of valuation, strike rate, time to maturity,
notional amount, payout amount for each
settlement, risk-free rate of JPY and
US dollars and the average implied volatility of
the exchange rate as at valuation date.

TEGNEABERRNSMES - HTFE
BR 2%2% SAEERZYLEE
BERETERBRF R RAGERHEX
FHREKIE -

Note 1: The discounted cash flow method uses only M1 WRBSRELEFRTEH
observable market inputs. RMiEHAE -

Note 2:  If the average implied volatility of the exchange MizE2: MWANEFHESER L
rate is 14% higher/lower and held other variables T,/ WA 14% T H b w] & R
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year =1 BIXAEFEHE_Z
ended 31 December 2014 would increase by —E+-_A=+—HILF
HK$5,309,000/increase by HK$5,458,000. Due to B2 BB %E T ¥
the terms of the contracts, changes in the inputs 5,309,000% st  #
adopted in the valuation model would lead to 5,458,000/8 7T » A FEA 491K
asymmetric changes in the fair values. o HEERRA B AE

BHEEBRAFEEEET
B -

There is no transfer between different levels of RAHE A EBERBREE 2T

the fair value hierarchy for the current period. GI=PNERIE:T-v
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c. Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(but fair value disclosures are required)
The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2014 and 2013

32. €mMI A%
c. EBMIBEZATEENESE)

(i) EEEZEUQXTEERFEZLX
SEcMEEREMERZAT
BE(EAEHRTEERSE)
RRBEFRR - HEHEKAT
ABREEM BRI EREE
ke@aEzREEREQFE
[ERIEES

R-FE—MER_F—=ZF+=
A=+—HZAFEEBLGE

31 December 2014
—E-NUE+=-A=+-—H
Level 2 Level 3
E2/ 3R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#ET

Total
Akt
HK$'000
THET

Level 1

F1R
HK$'000

FET

Financial assets ERMEE
Available-for-sale AR ERE

investments 133,500 - - 133,500
Total &t 133,500 - - 133,500
Financial liabilities SRIaE
Foreign currency swap  YMNEIZE] - 26,821 - 26,821
Structured foreign 4= S SN B

currency options - - 6,641 6,641
Total &% - 26,821 6,641 33,462

31 December 2013
—E—=F+-_A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F F28% FEIM &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT T FHIT T
|
Financial assets SHmEE
Available-for-sale AERBERE

investments

178,662 - - 178,662
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c. Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)
(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(but fair value disclosures are required) (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of
financial liabilities

32. €mMI A%
c. EBMIBEZATEENESE)

(i) EEEZEUQXTEERFEZLX
SEcMEEREMERZAT
BEE(EAEHRFEERE)
(#&)

ERMEBEFEIRAFEEFEZHEK

Structured
foreign
currency
options

SNEE K RE
HK$'000
THAT

At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F—A—HERZZ—=F
+=—A=+—8 -
Net settlement HEREE (1,616)
Fair value loss charged to profit or loss RNiBm kR 2 A EESE
— realised —B#5 1,616
— unrealied — REIR 6,641
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—HF+=-A=+—H 6,641

The total loss of approximately HK$8,257,000 for the year
included in profit or loss represent the total fair value loss
related to structured foreign currency options held at the end
of the reporting period that are included in “Other gains and
losses”.
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33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the reporting date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

5

33. REHNEAE

AEBERAEA

RikER - AEBEBRETAIREHELEEOR
THIHARR B B 2 AR R AR AR A A9 - SRR FE 4D
T

2014 2013
—F-mFE  —FT=
HK$'000
THET

HK$°000
Fi#7

Within one year —FR 9,391 8,763
In the second to fourth year inclusive F_EEENF(BIEERMF) 4,854 2,871
14,245 11,634

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for terms of two to four years with fixed rentals.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$10,291,000 (2013: HK$9,140,000), which was derived
from letting of staff quarters included in the Group’s property,
plant and equipment.

At the reporting date, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

REMONREAREREETRAEME
mENZEE B ZHEEMBMED
FoURETHEE -

TEBEABEEA
KREFZHEZ WERE WA K 10,291,000
T(ZZT—=4:9,140,000/8 ) * %%
SWAREHAFALERYE - BE K&
HBZEIBE -

R|EH - AREEHR NIIRKRIEBON
REMFRILEH -

2014 2013

—E—mE —ZF—=

HK$°000
FET

HK$'000
TAT

Within one year —FR 1,204 1,222
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EEERF(BIEERME) 111 1,335
1,315 2,557
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34. COMMITMENTS 34. A

2014 2013
—E—ImE —E—=fF

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Capital expenditure contracted for but not  stUEEW % - = M RiE

provided in the consolidated financial DE KB RELE

statements in respect of acquisition of B RAR P B 2

property, plant and equipment BARETH 340,649 286,058

Capital expenditure contracted for but not  FHTEBE AR D ETHE

provided in the consolidated financial RIELRE BT IE TR R

statements in respect of contribution to BB EARTH

an associate 575,460 613,920

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. B RERTE

The Company's share option scheme, was adopted pursuant AARZBREFETIBRBER_ZEZS=F
to a resolution passed at an extraordinary general meeting of T A+ ZBHZARBREEFR ARG LB
the Company on 22 December 2003 for the primary purpose BZRBER  FEAFEEERALTNER
of providing incentives to eligible persons or rewarding for WEHREE BB SOBEERIMERM - I
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group and BERZE—=F+_A=+—HEm -

expired on 21 December 2013.

No option was granted during the year 2013 and the following RZEBE—=F WERHERE mTIRE
table discloses details of the Company’s share options held E_ T =-"F(EE2-_F—=F+=A
by the employees (including directors) for the year 2013 up to “+—HIMBE)EE(BEES) AR
the expiry date on 21 December 2013: AR IR 2 IS
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35.

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

35.

BIRRESTE ()

Number of options
EREZE
Outstanding Exercised Expired  Outstanding
Exercise at during during at
Date of grant Exercisable period price 1.1.2013 the year the year 21.12.2013
R-Z-= RZE-=
—A—H TZA=t+-8H
REAH 768 e HATHE  RERTE  RERER e R AT
HKS
BT
Directors:
Ex:
26 February 2004 27.2.2004 t0 21.12.2013 2.109 95,425,000 (57,100,000)  (38,325,000) =
“ETME_AZ1+RB “ZTME_A-T+HZE
“Z-Z#+-AZt-H
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 t0 21.12.2013 1.742 49,500,000 (24,750,000)  (24,750,000) -
“EERERATHA ZEERERATARE
ZE-=E+-AZ+-H
144,925,000 (81,850,000 (63,075,000) -
Employees:
=]
26 February 2004 27.2.2004 10 21.12.2013 2109 140,937,500 (96,448,000)  (44,489,500) -
“ZENE-AZTRA “ZTMF_A-T+AZE
ZE-=E+-AZt-H
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 t0 21.12.2013 1.742 24,750,000 - (24,750,000) =
ZEERFAATHA ZETREAATARE
“E-Z#+ZA-t-H
165,687,500 (96,448,000 (69,239,500) =
310,612,500  (178,298,000)  (132,314,500) -
Exercisable at the end ERATR - -
of the years

In respect of the share options exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2013, the weighted average share price
at the dates of exercise is HK$2.06.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

All of the Group’s Hong Kong employees are required to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. The Group is
required to contribute 5%, while the employees are required
to contribute 5% of their salaries to the scheme to the
maximum of HK$1,250 per month from January to May and
HK$1,500 per month from June to December (2013:
HK$1,250 per month) for each employee.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries of their employees to the state-
managed retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme.

36.

-=

BE_T—=Ft+t_A=t—HLFE 3
BRABEEITEMS - N1TEH 2 0
FHER2.06 8T

RKEFETE

AEEZ 2REBEBYADMEHIEATE
T8 REEBEHS%HZR - MEE IR
ARZeEEHE &% 2®m3 - BA— A
Z2HA BREEZEAEFRESAE1,250
B MBSNAZTZ AR RS H1,500%
TT(ZZE—=%F : &7 1,260%87T) °

RBPEBRERLAD - PEMELQRA
[ B B AR AR AR EE L R E N E R
BHMETED L 21K - REEBEKRE
FNEtBIpT B 2 B E AR ZATEIEH AR

=
AN

—TMEFHR o ENERERAT > M5



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 « HE=Z

37.

38.

FIiE A —JE = i SNl

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At the end of the reporting period, government grants of
HK$16,365,000 (2013: HK$18,869,000) were included in
trade and other payables, to subsidise the acquisition of
property, plant and machinery for scientific research
development. The amount has been treated as deferred
income and will be transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the relevant assets. This policy resulted in a credit to
profit or loss in the current year of HK$2,106,000 (2013:
HK$13,669,000).

Incentive subsidies of HK$17,838,000 (2013: HK$49,037,000)
have been received in the current year to encourage the
operation of a PRC subsidiary for the development on export
sales and advance technology. There were no specific
conditions attached to the grants and, therefore, the Group
recognised the grants in profit or loss upon receipt.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

37.

38.

IEgSp=4-1

R EER - AEBBEEHREYE - K
ER#EFULRERTZER 2 BT ER
16,365,000/% 7T ( = F — = £ : 18,869,000
ETL) P AJE T BRTE R EoAth R BUIE © 52 H
B WAR AIRLER AW LR & E 2 A A
FHIEEEIER - WBCREMAFEFT AR
WA FEA2,106,0008 L ( —FE— =4
13,669,000/ 7T) °

AE EWEBT &5 B BT 8 A B INE
¥R RIERIT A/ ERME NS ENE
BK17,838,0008 ( = T — = %F:
49,037,000 70 ) © &5 2 E M B TE
&4 - Bt - NREBERKEREER TP ER
R -

BEEALRS

AERESMAEMTRERENKE ZFH MM
T

2014 2013

—E-NFE  —FT=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Short-term benefits SRR R 22,328 31,576
Post-employment benefits BB 2R 133 105
22,461 31,681

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. KRB EEMBATER
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
39.1 General information of subsidiaries 39.1 B ARz —HRER
Details of the Group's subsidiaries at the end of the R ERREEENB QR 25BN
reporting period are set out below. N

Nominal value of

Place of issued and fully
incorporation paid ordinary Proportion
or registration/ share capital/ ownership interest
operation registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary EMBLHET/ ERTRBELER ADAEEZ Principal activities
HWEARER 3 RE/ ZRMEAEE FrEgREL Al FTEEH
2014 2013
“2-jmF —T-=
Truly Electronics Manufacturing Hong Kong HK$1,000,010 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
Limited Bk 1,000,010/ 7T calculators and electronic
EHEFERAA components
BT ERRETINES
Truly Instrument Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Trading of electric tooth
EHESEERAA B 100787 brush and health care
products

EPTRREARRERE S

Truly Semiconductors Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Trading of LCD products
BH*ERERAR ) 1,000%7T BRREBTEERES
Truly Opto-electronics Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 85.4% 85.4%  Trading of compact camera
BAXERRLA BE 1,000,000 7 module and touch panel

BUERERERBERERE S

Truly Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$872,894 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
BHNIZERAA BB 872,894 7T components
BTTHES
Truly (USA) Inc. United States of US$20,000 100% 100%  Marketing of electronic
America 20,0007 calculators
el ERL L ikt
EREFERLA * PRC US$38,964,115 100% 100%  Manufacture of electronic
i 38,964,165 calculators and electronic
components
HEEFHERREF LN
[ER+ERERAR PRC US$498,300,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of LCD
e 498,300,000 0 products

HERRERTSER
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. ARAETEMBLIER (@)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

39.1 General information of subsidiaries (continued) 39.1 BARZ—RER (&)

Nominal value of

HE issued and fully
incorporation paid ordinary Proportion
or registration/ share capital/ ownership interest
operation registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary EMRALEER/ BRETRAREER KRRBEZ Principal activities
WEARER B kE/ ZMEAEE FrEEERLA TEEH
2014 2013
“E-NF —T-—=
EFESCLE)BRAA * PRC US$1,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of electric
HE 1,000,000% 7T toothbrush and health care
products

HEEHTRREARRER

ERRERHERLR PRC RMB340,000,000 85.4% 85.4%  Manufacture of compact
HE AR340,000,000 7T camera module and touch
panel

HENLRRRERBEFER

EMIZOUR)BRAR* PRC HK$3,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of electronic
i 3,000,000 7T component
SEBTLH
* wholly foreign owned enterprise * INEBE R
**  The Chinese corporate name was changed from 1= f £ & »*  HEZT-—ZFFT_A=+—HIF
CLE)BRATR to =FIHXEMRM AR AR during the year B EFMNREOUR)BRATZ ATSE
ended 31 December 2013. NEBERBEFNAERNDBERAF -
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. KRB EEMBATNER (@)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

39.1 General information of subsidiaries (continued) 39.1 B AT Z—RER (&)
Except for Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited and % Z FEF BB 2 A &Truly (USA)
Truly (USA) Inc., all subsidiaries are indirectly held by Inc. 90 - FR BB RA A1 B AR RIEE
the Company. A -
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities RZE—NFRNE—=F+=A
outstanding at 31 December 2014 and 2013 or at any =+ B FRNEFEMER SHBA
time during the years. A ETARERZERES -
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has MNEREEIR KOG BHEEHANEHE
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A FREARFEZEMHBERR - LE
majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. B AR KIBMNEBLIE - :2EM
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are BARZEEEBKBENT :

summarised as follows:

Principal activities Principal place of business Name of subsidiaries
TEEH TEEEME MEARSE
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
—g-mE  —F-=%
+=A=t-8 +=A=t-8
Investment holding or inactive Hong Kong 7 7
REZRNIEER B
Germany 1 1
=E
Singapore 1 1
EpIIE
9 9
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. AR EEMBARER (@)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
39.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that 92 EEERKERERZIZENE
have material non-controlling interests AEZHE
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned TRV EEEAGELERER ZIER
subsidiary of the Company that has material non- BB AR 2

controlling interests:

Place of
incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal interests and voting
place of rights held by non-
business controlling interests Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary ~ HMRY/ HEERRESEZ controlling interests controlling interests
WEARER TEEXY BRRBER REELH PREFERES 2 57 Rtk ERER
31.12.2014 31.12.2013 31.12.2014 31.12.2013 31.12.2014 31.12.2013
“$-mF -3-=F C$-BF -T-=F §-BE  -T-=
+-A=+-H +ZA=+—H +=B=t-H =+-H +ZA=t-H =+-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 TH7 7 7
ERXERR PRC 14.6% 14.6% 130,907 148,277 446,453 322,736
BRAF HE
Summarised financial information in respect of the B LB AT R = NI
above subsidiary that has material non-controlling BB EREENT - THFBKE
interests is set out below. The summarised B ELEEARGIEEHEA S8 -

consolidated financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BERAERBERAT EAAERBERAA

2014

—E—0NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets mENEE 6,984,768 6,657,694
Non-current assets ERHEE 3,207,666 1,722,820
Current liabilities mEIARE 7,062,544 5,931,689
Non-current liabilities IErRBaE 12,951 191,258

Equity attributable to owners RAREE AR

of the Company 2,670,486 1,934,831
Non-controlling interests IR R 446,453 322,736
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. ARRIEEMBLARER &)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
39.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that 92 EEERKERERZIZENE
have material non-controlling interests AEZFHE#E)
(continued)
fF R E B9 B BR 2 F (continued) BRAERBBERAR (&)
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
BE HZE
—E—-NEF —E—=%F
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—A
IEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Revenue Wz 13,028,107 10,370,649
Expenses B 327,817 227,352
Profit for the year N JE % R 898,043 1,068,119
Profit attributable to owners of the A RIHER ARG F
Company 767,136 919,842
Profit attributable to the non-controlling  ZE¥ERRREZSHER A
interests FEAE % T 130,907 148,277
Profit for the year REE R 898,043 1,068,119
Other comprehensive income RRE R AEG
attributable to owners of the Company HEa 2w A (42,131) 34,250
Other comprehensive income IR B E A
attributable to the non-controlling 2HEUWA
interests (7,190) 11,411
Other comprehensive income NEZEMEEA
for the year (49,321) 45,661
Total comprehensive income KARER AFEL
attributable to owners of the Company 2HEUALETE 725,005 954,092
Total comprehensive income FEVERR e RS
attributable to the non-controlling Z2ERALBEE
interests 123,717 159,688
Total comprehensive income for the year ZREE 2 E LA B8 848,722 1,113,780
Dividends paid to non-controlling EIEERER IR E
interests = -
Net cash inflow from operating activities &5 R AJERE 1,734,179 114,991
Net cash outflow from investing activities & EEIE & mH I FE5E (1,828,915) (931,398)
Net cash inflow from financing activities ~ RI&E EEN IR &R AJEE 1,786,738 1,067,863
Net cash inflow WEMAFE 1,692,002 251,456
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, a
subsidiary of the Company is a defendant in a legal action in
Italy involving the alleged defective goods manufactured by
the subsidiary according to its customers’ designs and
specifications. The claim above against the subsidiary is
approximately Euro 7.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$68 million) in aggregate. The directors believe, based on
legal advice, that the case has legal and factual grounds to
defend and therefore it is not probable that losses (including
claims for costs) will be incurred. As a result, no provision has
been made as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 in this regard.

41. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following were the Group's bills receivables as at 31
December 2014 and 2013 that were discounted to banks on
a full recourse basis.

40. ZAEE

HE2-_Z-—WNER-_ZT—=F1+_A=1+—
AILEE  AAR—EHBARREAF—
TS NI B ARIEERE 2Rt kR
HEEEREERARFRRPIEER S °
FlHEZMBRARNZRRAEN A
7,200,0008k 7t (FB 55 7 4968,000,0007 7T ) °
EERBEEERRGE  ZEUHBEERS
BEBETTE Bt - REBTAATREE
AER(BREEARR) -t RZT—I
ER-E—=F+ - F=+—HIE R E
R -

4. BREMEE

MTAAEER _—_T—NOFER_F—=F
ToA=+—AR2EEREEEFR TR
TZERERE -

2014 2013
—EF-mFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Carrying amount of discounted bills TR ERRAE
receivables 32,174 -
Carrying amount of associated liabilities A EREE (32,174) -
Net position PR SR = -

The Group discounted bills receivables to banks by
discounting those receivables on a full recourse basis. As the
Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these receivables, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the receivables and has recognised the
cash received on the transfer as discounted bills (see note
27). These financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MERHEE

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-—A=t-HLEE

2010 2011 2012
—Z-Tf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THBT TAET TAET TET

Revenue Wiz 7,735,711 10,503,988 12,374,379 20,680,750 21,415,651
Cost of sales HERA (6,825,125)  (9,194,294)  (10,817,526)  (17,788,815)  (18,929,229)
Gross profit e 910,586 1,309,694 1,556,853 2,891,935 2,486,422
Other income HAA 37,937 49,754 51,717 109,492 124,494
Other gains and losses Higs (36,768) (25,591) 19,185 (2,320) (45,096)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A4t HH £/ B HERE

investments - (106,026) - - (7,216)
Administrative expenses THER (231,653) (302,821) (365,210) (479,496) (429,478)
Distribution and selling expenses D4R HE B (147,524) (188,554) (206,107) (325,923) (395,733)
Finance costs HHER (43,414) (65,110) (72,646) (78,974) (93,890)
Share of result of an associate DS AR EE - - - - (17,502)
Profit before tax FiAns A 489,164 671,346 983,792 2114714 1,622,001
Income tax expense PR (174,208) (290,587) (267,833) (346,447) (372,725)
Profit for the year AR 314,956 380,759 716959 1768267 1,249,276
Attributable to: IATALER

Equity holders of the Company AREEEFEA 314,956 380,759 710,261 1,619,990 1,118,369

Non-controlling interests e AE R - - 5,698 148,277 130,907

314,956 380,759 715,959 1,768,267 1,249,276

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

At 31 December
R+=A=1+—~H
2011 2012 2013 2014

—F—F T--F ZT-=F ZB-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TATL TAT TAL TERL

Total assets EESE 7,915,016 10,098,832 11,587,162 16,280,931 18,731,528
Total liabilities BafE (3,964,611)  (5,702,030)  (6,446,875)  (9,054,075) (11,208,169)

3,950,405 4,396,802 5,140,287 7,226,856 7,523,359

Equity attributable to equity owners  ZRA RIIEz 15 H A MG
of the Company 3,950,405 4,396,802 4,977,239 6,904,120 7,076,906
Non-controlling interests FERER - - 163,048 322,736 446,453

3,950,405 4,396,802 5,140,287 7,226,856 7,523,359
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

FRELFIMBRARZEH

Information about the statement of financial position of the HEAATNRBEHRRZ AR AR ERIBIE -
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

2014 AONIC]
—E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Investments in subsidiaries B RERE 81,700 81,700

Amount due from a subsidiary FEUR B B~ R FRIR 1,601,165 961,315

Other assets HmEE 24,702 21,408

1,707,567 1,064,423

Total liabilities BafE (817,137) (116,763)

890,430 947,660

Share capital A& AN 58,142 58,392

Reserves i 832,288 889,268

890,430 947,660

Share Capital
Share Share options Special redemption Retained

capital premium* reserve reserve’ reserve profits Total

R& RGEE* BRERE KElfRE EARERE RE&EF &%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T TEL TEL TEL &L T TiEx

At 1 January 2013 W-E-=#—f-H 55,295 545,520 10,000 17,410 148 33,835 662,208
Profit for the year KEEHET - - - - - 339,401 339,401
Dividends recognised as distribution AN RS - - - - - (340,671) (340,671)
Effect of share options Bz pE 3,566 366,714 (10,000) - - 6,667 366,947
Shares repurchased and cancelled BBERDHERR (469) (79,756) - - 469 469) (80,225)

At 31 December 2013 RZZ—=&+-R

=f-H 58,392 832,478 - 17,410 617 38,763 947,660

Profit for the year KEE R - - - - - 638,001 638,001
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ HRADREZIKE - - - - - (640,428) (640,428)
Shares repurchased and cancelled BERREFERA (250) 54,553) - - 250 (250) (54,803

At 31 December 2014 RZZ-WF+ZA

=t+-A 58,142 771,925 - 17,410 867 36,086 890,430

* Under the applicable laws of Cayman Islands, the share premium of the — * REFSHE ZERAD - NAR 2R R E T KIE

Company is available for distributions or paying dividends to shareholders HBSEIR A AR 2 (B MIREIEE DR+
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association A8 MR EREEL DRSS AEE - ANARZEA
and provided that immediate following the distribution or paying dividend A B EBRER S HEE -

the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

# The special reserve of the Company represents the difference between — # RARZEERBEDIER A AR EREENBARZ

the net book values of the underlying assets of the Company’s s BaZzEwWEA AR ZHEEERmFEEAD
subsidiaries acquired at the date on which the shares of these companies ARBEMET I ARRBRNABERE/ I Z5E -

were acquired by the Company, and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisitions.
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